
METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

Commissioner Wesley S. Davis 
Commissioner Joseph E. Flescher 
Commissioner Tim Zorc 
Commissioner Peter D. O'Bryan 
Commissioner Bob Solari 
Andrea Coy- City of Sebastian 
Tracy Carroll -City of Vero Beach 
Matt McCain-IRC School Board 

Craig Fletcher -City of Vero Beach 
Pilar Turner -City of Vero Beach, Alternate 
Dick Haverland-Town of Indian River Shores 
Jerry Weick-Town of IRS, Alternate 

Susan Adams -City of Fellsmere 
Sara Savage-City of Fellsmere, Alternate 
Non-voting Ex-Officio Member 
Harold Ofstie-Town of Orchid 

Claudia Jimenez -JRC School Board, Alternate FOOT District 4 Representative 

Bob McPartlan- MPO Chairman 

AGENDA 

THE METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) WILL MEET AT 10:00 AM ON 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 8, 2013 IN CONFERENCE ROOM B1-501, COUNTY ADMINISTRATION 
BUILDING B, 1800 27TH STREET, VERO BEACH. 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Approval of Minutes 
April10, 2013 
Action Required 

4. Status Report of MPO Advisory Committees 
No Action Required 

5. Consideration of an Amendment to the Indian River County 2012/13 - 2016/17 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
Action Required 

6. Announcement of All Aboard Florida Passenger Rail Project Workshop 
No Action Required 
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7. Status Report of Transit Development Plan (TOP) Major Update and Consideration of 
Consultant Presentation 
No Action Required 

8. Consideration of Presentation by Senior Resource Association (SRA) and County Staff 
on Goline and Community Coach Operating Budget 
No Action Required 

9. Quarterly Status Report 
No Action Required 

10. Other Business 

11. Comments from the Public 

12. Adjournment 

Next Meeting 
MPO: June 12, 2013; 10:00 AM; Conference Room B1-501. 

To view the MPO Agenda packet on-line please go to the following link: 

http://www.ircgov.com/Boards/MP0/2013/agendas/MP005813A.pdf 

If you have any questions concerning the items on this agenda, please contact MPO staff at (772) 226-1455. Anyone who may wish to appeal 
any decision which may be made at this meeting will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which includes the 
testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. Anyone who needs a special accommodation for this meeting must contact the County's 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Coordinator at 772 226-1223 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

For complaints, questions or concerns about civil rights or nondiscrimination; or for special requests under the American with Disabilities Act, 
please contact: Phil Matson, Title VI Coordinator at (772) 226-1455 or pmatson@ircgov.com. 

Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability or family status. Persons who require 
special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who require translation services (free of charge) should contact 
Phil Matson at (772) 226-1455 or pmatson @ircgov.com at least seven days prior to the meeting. 
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METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

A meeting of the MPO was held at 10:00 am. on Wednesday, April 10, 2013, in the 
County Administration Building "B", Room B1-501, 1800 2ih Street, Vero Beach, Florida. 

Note: Audio and video recordings of the meeting can be found at 
http://www.ircqov.com/Boards/MP0/2013.htm 

MPO members present were: Chairman Bob McPartlan, Mayor, City of Sebastian; 
Wesley Davis, IRC Commissioner, District 1; Joe Flescher, District 2; Tim Zorc, District 3; Bob 
Solari, District 5; Craig Fletcher, Mayor, City of Vero Beach; Tracy Carroll, Council Member, City 
of Vero Beach; Andrea Coy, Council Member, City of Sebastian; Claudia Jimenez, IRC School 
Board; Hal Ofstie, Mayor, Town of Orchid (non-voting member); and, Jeremy Mullings, FDOT 
District 4 Representative (non-voting member). 

Absent were: Peter O'Bryan, IRC Commissioner, District 4; Susan Adams, Mayor, City of 
Fellsmere; and Dick Haverland, Council Member, Town of Indian River Shores. 

Present were IRC staff: Joe Baird, County Administrator; Chris Mora, Public Works 
Director; Bob Keating, Community Development Director; Jeanne Bresett, IRC Traffic Division; 
Jason Brown, Budget Director; Phil Matson, IRC MPO Director; Brian Freeman, MPO Senior 
Planner; Andy Sobczak, MPO Senior Planner; and Kathy Charest, Community Development 
Staff Assistant/Recording Secretary. 

Others Present: Jim O'Connor, City Manager, City of Vero Beach; Lisa Dykstra, Jason 
Learner, Newton Wilson, FDOT; and Karen Deigl, Senior Resource Association. 

Call to Order 

Chairman McPartlan called the meeting to order at 10:04 am, at which time it was noted 
that a quorum was not yet present. Chairman McPartlan asked staff to present the agenda 
items that required no MPO action. 

Status Report of Other MPO Advisory Committees- No Action Required 

Mr. Matson reviewed his memorandum dated April 3, 2013, a copy of which is included 
in the agenda packet and on file in the Commission Office 

Consideration of Strategic lntermodal System (SIS) Cost Feasible Plan Update - No Action 
Required 

Mr. Matson explained that the Florida Department of Transportation is in the 
process of updating its long range Strategic lntermodal System (SIS) Cost Feasible Plan 
(CFP). 
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F:\Community Development\Users\MPO\Meetings\MEETING RECORDS\MINUTES\MPO Minutes\20 13\MPO 4-10-13 
Unapproved. doc 



(Ms. Jimenez and Commissioner Davis arrived at 10:07 AM. Ms. Carroll arrived at 10:10 
AM). 

Mr. Matson introduced Lisa Dykstra, SIS and Concept-Development Coordinator for 
FDOT, who gave a PowerPoint presentation, a copy of which is on file in the BCC office. Ms. 
Dykstra explained the status of the Strategic lntermodal System (SIS) 2040 Cost Feasible Plan 
(CFP) update to the MPO. 

Ms. Dykstra discussed the purpose of the SIS, the planning process, the project 
identification process, the project selection process, and the CFP schedule. Mr. Fletcher 
inquired about SIS funding. Mr. Matson explained that funding for SIS roadways comes from 
state and federal gas taxes and toll revenues. Ms. Dykstra noted that Indian River County's 
highest SIS priority, the Oslo Road Interchange, was included in the Draft 2040 SIS Plan. 
Commissioner Davis asked for an update on the status of the Oslo Road interchange. Ms. 
Dykstra responded that the Interchange Justification Report (IJR) phase of the project was now 
underway, and FOOT's consultants have recently gotten approval of the Methodology Letter of 
Understanding (MLOU). She explained that the MLOU specifies the ground rules for the 
analysis phase of the study. Ms. Dykstra also stated that FDOT would return to provide the 
board with an update on this project in the near future. Commissioner Davis asked if there 
were any laws that mandated commercial zoning at interchanges, and Ms. Dykstra responded 
that there were none at the state and federal level and that zoning was part of the local 
process. Councilmember Coy asked if US 1 was on the SIS network, and Mr. Matson responded 
that it was an FDOT roadway but was not on FOOT's SIS network. 

Chairman McPartlan stated that a quorum was now present. Therefore, the MPO would 
proceed to the agenda items that required action by the MPO. 

Approval of Minutes of the MPO Meeting of February 13, 2013 -Action Required 

Chairman McPartlan asked if there were any additions or corrections to the MPO 
minutes of February 13. 2013. There were none. 

ON MOTION BY Commissioner Solari, SECONDED BY 
Commissioner Flescher, the members voted unanimously (9 - 0) 
to approve the February 13, 2013 minutes. 

Review of Progress Report and Reimbursement Invoice #2 and #3 for the 2012/13 
Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Planning Grant- Action Required 

Mr. Matson referred to his memorandum dated April1, 2013, a copy of which is 
included in the agenda packet and on file in the Commission Office. 

Mr. Matson indicated that this item must be approved by the MPO in order for the MPO 
to receive reimbursement from the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged for local 
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transportation disadvantaged program administrative expenses. 

ON MOTION BY Commissioner Davis, SECONDED BY 
Commissioner Flescher, the members voted unanimously (9- O) 
to approve the Planning Grant Progress Report and Invoice #2 
and #3, and to direct staff to forward the report and invoices to 
the State of Florida Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged. 

Consideration of 2013 Apportionment Plan -Action Required 

Mr. Matson explained that, in 1993, the MPO, as required by federal and state statutes, 
developed its first ever apportionment plan, specifying the voting structure of the MPO's policy 
board. He indicated that, since 1993, the MPO has made a number of changes to the policy 
board voting structure. 

Mr. Matson stated that the last such change occurred in 2003, when the MPO adopted a 
revised apportionment plan reflecting the results of the 2000 Census. Prior to that, Mr. Matson 
noted, the MPO had revised and updated its apportionment plans to reflect changing 
conditions in Indian River County. 

Mr. Matson noted that, recently, FOOT had requested MPOs to review their current 
planning area boundaries and apportionment plans to ensure that those plans reflected any 
changes in population that had occurred as a result of the 2010 Census. Mr. Matson indicated 
that, in response, MPO staff developed a draft apportionment plan. Mr. Matson stated that, 
since there was little change in the population distribution within the County between 2000 
and 2010, there would be no need to change the existing MPO voting structure. 

ON MOTION BY Commissioner Flescher, SECONDED BY 
Commissioner Davis, the members voted unanimously (9- 0) to 
approve the 2013 Apportionment Plan. 

Consideration of Revised Federal Functional Classification Map -Action Required 

Mr. Matson provided a brief description of the Revised Federal Functional Classification 
Map, a copy of which is on file in the Commission office. He noted that Federal regulations 
require MPOs to evaluate urban area and rural area boundaries and functionally reclassify 
roadways every ten years following the publication of the U.S. Census Reports. 

Mr. Matson introduced Newton Wilson and Jason Learner from FOOT staff. Mr. Wilson 
gave a PowerPoint presentation, a copy of which is on file in the BCC office. 

Mr. Wilson explained that the purpose of functional classification was to group 

Unapproved 3 5/2/2013 
F:\Community Development\Users\MPO\Meetings\MEETING RECORDS\MINUTES\MPO Minutes\20 13\MPO 4-10-13 
Unapproved.doc 



roadways into categories based on use. He further explained that functional classification is 
used to develop level of service for roadways and determine the eligibility of roadways to use 
federal funding. Mr. Wilson and Mr. Learner discussed changes to the functional classification 
process that occurred because of MAP-21. Ms. Carroll had a question about the large number 
of collector roadways in the residential areas of Vero Beach. Mr. Matson indicated that those 
roadways are classified as collectors on the current functional classification map, and the 
presence of a roadway on the map does not mean that the roadway will be widened. He 
indicated that roadways on the functional classification map could qualify for federally-funded 
improvements. 

ON MOTION BY Commissioner Davis, SECONDED BY 
Commissioner Flescher, the members voted unanimously (9- 0} 
to approve the Revised Federal Functional Classification Maps. 

Recommendation for Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) Selection - Action 
Required 

Mr. Matson explained that every five years the IRC MPO, which serves as the designated 
official planning agency for the Transportation Disadvantaged Services in the County, has to 
designate a Community Transportation Coordinator. 

Mr. Matson gave a PowerPoint presentation, a copy of which is on file in the BCC office. 
In that presentation, he provided a synopsis of the history of Public Transportation in Indian 
River County, explained the organizational structure of transit, described the current status of 
the system, reviewed the CTC selection process and provided a staff recommendation. 

Mr. Matson explained that, in November of 2012, the MPO began the CTC selection 
process by issuing a Request for Letters of Interest and Qualifications (RU). He noted that state 
law requires that the MPO must advertise the RLI in the Florida Administrative Weekly and the 
local newspaper with the largest daily circulation. He noted that, though not required, the 
MPO also posted the RLI on DemandStar, an online bid publishing service used by contractors 
throughout the Country. 

Mr. Matson remarked that, in response to the RLI, the MPO received two letters of 
interest and qualifications. He said that those letters of interest were from the Indian River 
County Senior Resource Association, Inc. of Vero Beach and TRANSITions Commute Solutions, 
LLC, of Minneola, Florida. He noted that, after considering the RFP, TRANSITions notified the 
MPO on February 6, 2013 that it was withdrawing from consideration for CTC selection. 

(Commissioner Davis left the meeting at 10:59 AM). 

Mr. Matson explained that, as a result of the TRANSITions withdrawal, there is now only 
one CTC candidate. Mr. Matson summarized that candidate's qualifications by noting that the 
Senior Resource Association has served the County since at least 1982; he said that the SRA has 
repeatedly been evaluated by the MPO and the Transportation Disadvantaged Local 

Unapproved 4 5/2/2013 
F:\Community Development\Users\MPO\Meetings\MEETING RECORDS\MINUTES\MPO Minutes\20 13\MPO 4-10-13 
Unapproved.doc 



Coordinating Board and found to be effective and he noted that the SRA has expanded its 
offerings to coincide with the needs of the County. 

Commissioner Flescher asked why Indian River County is not the CTC. Mr. Matson 
explained that many counties have non-profits serving as CTCs, and the non-profit model is 
generally less expensive. Mr. Solari requested an updated graph of North County Transit 
Ridership in the next presentation. Commissioner Flescher stated that he wished all 
municipalities would participate in funding the SRA. Ms. Coy remarked that she would like to 
see the breakdown of grant funds, how the funds are used and for what purpose. 
Commissioner Solari indicated that he had exposure to detailed funding issues as a TDLCB 
member, but he would support a presentation on those issues by the SRA at the next MPO 
meeting. Mr. Matson emphasized the importance of selecting a CTC at this time in order to 
meet the state deadline of June 30th. Ms. Coy stated that she wanted more information before 
she made her selection. Commissioner Flescher questioned if the County should take over the 
bus service. Mr. Baird stated that the County had looked at that issue, and concluded that the 
cost would be significantly higher if the County operated the system. He also stated that the 
County was privatizing other services to save money. Chairman McPartlan remarked that the 
SRA was doing a great job and was among the most efficient providers in the state in terms of 
efficiency. 

On MOTION BY Commissioner Solari, SECONDED BY Commissioner Zorc, the members 
voted (7-1) with Ms. Coy opposed, to recommend that the Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged in Tallahassee reappoint the sole bidder, the Senior Resource Association 
(SRA), as Community Transportation Coordinator, and to request that SRA staff make a 
detailed budget presentation at the next MPO meeting. 

Other Business 

There was none 

Comments From The Public 

There were none. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 11:28 AM. 

Unapproved 5 5/2/2013 
F:\Community Development\Users\MPO\Meetings\MEETING RECORDS\MINUTES\MPO Minutes\20 13\MPO 4- I 0- I 3 
Unapproved. doc 



TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY, FLORIDA 

MEMORANDUM 

Members of the Indian River County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

Robert M. Keating, AICP /(;.M.'(__ 
Community Development Director 

Phillip J. Matson, AICPCA.. fV' 
MPO Staff Director ~? 

April 30, 2013 

STATUS REPORT OF MPO ADVISORY COMMITTEES 

It is requested that the information presented herein be given formal consideration by the 
Indian River County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) at the meeting of May 8, 2013. 

TAC & CAC MEETINGS 

The TAC and CAC are both scheduled to meet on May 7, 2013. At the May 8 MPO meeting, staff 
will provide an update on the comments and recommendations of the TAC and CAC. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

The MPO and its advisory committees will next meet as follows: 

MPO Meeting: June 12, 2013- 10:00 am 
BAC Meeting: July 23, 2013- 2:00pm 
TAC Meeting: May 24, 2013- 3:00 pm 
CAC Meeting: June 4, 2013- 1:00 pm 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY, FLORIDA 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Members of the Indian River County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

THROUGH: Robert M. Keating, AICP fuMK 
Community Development Director 

FROM: Phillip J. Matson, AI~fi-1 
MPO Staff Director 

DATE: April26, 2013 

SUBJECT: Consideration of Amendment to Indian River County 2012/13 - 2016/17 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

It is requested that the information presented herein be given formal consideration by the Indian 
River County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) at the meeting of May 8, 2013. 

DESCRIPTION, CONDITIONS & ANALYSIS 

Recently, FDOT requested MPO approval of an amendment to the adopted FY 2012113- 2016/17 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). Unlike minor TIP amendments which can be 
approved by staff (pursuant to MPO resolution No. 99-02), this amendment involves the addition of 
a new project and must be approved by the MPO board. 

The proposed amendment authorizes construction of the City of Fellsmere's Welcome Center at 
CR512 and 1-95. The project includes parking facilities, landscaping, signage, and ±1,000 linear 
feet of sidewalk. It is not anticipated that this amendment will impact any other project in the work 
program. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the MPO review the attached proposed TIP amendment and approve the 
amendment. 

Attachments: 

1. Amendment to FY 2012113 TIP, City of Fellsmere Welcome Center Construction 
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( 

Florida Department of Transportation 
RICK SCOTT 
GOVERNOR 

34 00 West Commercial Boulevard 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309 

ANANTH PRASAD, P.E. 
SECRETARY 

April 17, 2013 

Mr. PhiJ Matson, Director 
Indian River Metropolitan Planning Organization 
180127thStreet . . 
V ero Beach, FL 32960 

Dear Mr. Matson: 

SUBJECT: Indian River Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
TIP Amendment Request FY 2012/13-2016/17 
FM No. 432915-1 

Pursuant to Title 23 and Title 49, the Florida Department of Transportation requests your processing and 
approval of the attached amendmentto the FY 20 12/13 - 20 16117 Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP). This amendment is required because a new project has been added to the work program and needs 
to be reflected in the TIP. This Transportation Improvement Program Amendment is consistent with the 
Adopted Long Range Transportation Plan and the adopted TIP remains fmancially constrained. 

Please contact me at (954) 777-2253 if you have any questions or need additional information. 

;z:;ni~ 
MarJorie Htlarre 
Intergovernmental Coordinator 
District Four 

During the Indian River MPO Board Meeting on _______ ___, the above amendment was 
Date 

authorized to be included in the FY 2012113-2016/17 Transportation Improvement Program. 

Mr. Phil Matson 
Director 

www.dot.state.fl.us 

Signature 
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FIDOT OWPB - STIP Amendments; Update Amendments Page I of 1 

The preparation of this report has been financed In part through grant[sJ from the Federal Highway 
Administration and Federal Transit Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, under the 

State Planning and Research Program, Section 505 [or Metropolitan Planning Program, Section 104(f)] · 
of Title 23, U.S. Code. 

The contents of this report do not necessarily reflect the official views or policy of the U.S. 
Department of Transportation. 

Transportation Improvement Program Amendment 
FY2012/13 -2016/17 
-This STIP is in an MPO Area *" 

STIP Amendment Number: 

TIP Page Number: Appendix A 

On Wednesday, May 08, 2013, the Indian River MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization amended the Transportation 
Improvement Program that was developed and adopted in compliance with Title 23 and Title 49 in a continuing, cooperative 
and comprehensive transportation planning process as a condition to the receipt of federal assistance. By signature below, 
the MPO representative certifies that the TIP amendment was adopted by the MPO Board as documented in the supporting 
attachments. This amendment will be subsequently incorporated into the MPOs TIP for public disclosure. 

The amendment does not adversely impact the air quality conformity or financial constraints of the STI P. 

The STIP Amendment is consistent with the Adopted Long Range Transportation Plan. (Page Number:9-17) 
I ·This document has not been approved . I 
Metropolitan Planning Organization Chairman or Designee 

Indian River MPO 

This document has not been approved 

Federal Aid Management Manager or Designee 
STIP amendment criteria: 

. This document has not been approved 

FDOT District Representative or Designee District 04 

fThls document has not been aPproved~ 

Federal Authorization 

A- The change adds new individual projects to the current STIP 

An air conformity determination must be made by the MPO on amended projects within the non-attainment or maintenance 
areas 

E . The MPO is not in an air quality non-attainment or maintenance area. 

P . ctN rO]e a me CR-512 WEST OF SR 9/1-95 -
IS talus (ITEM rver Description 

Fund Phase < FY 20131 FY 20131 FY 20141 FY 20151 
Original STIP I Not Available 

0.001 0.001 o.oot O.OOj 
Proposed Project r29151 _r1 "-R..S12 WEST OF SR-911-95 

Managed bY FELLSMERE CITY OF 

I SN I PE O:OOI 0.001 5,000.001 O.OOJ. 
BROWARD COUNTY BOX CONTINGENCIES Funding Source Mer Change r279491 ro BOX FOR ESIIMAil:JcbNTINGENCJES 32-02"' GEOTECH 
Managed by FOOT 

I SN I PE 0.00 1.00 o.oc 
Funding Source Balance Before Change 1.00 5,000.00 

unding Source Balanee After Change 1.00 

Net Change to Funding Source -5 000.00 

Proposed Project Before Change 
Proposed Project After Change 5,000.00 

Net Change to Project 5 000.00 

Net Change to Funding Source -5,000.00 

Net Change to Proposed Project 5,000.00 

Net Change to STIP 

NOTE: *"' 1 Attached documents found ** 
~ 432915-1 LRTP.PDF (Size: 136 Kbytes) 

0.00 

FY 20161 FY 20171 > FY 2017 

0.001 0.001 0.0~ 

0.001_ 0.001 o.oc 

0.0~ 0.00 0.0 

A 1'1'1 I'll\ 1 1 



Status FPN Limits Description Fund Phase FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 
Current 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Proposed 
City of Fellsmere Welcome Center, Project Site 

432915-1 CR-512 West of SR-9/1-95 
Geotechnical Research SN PE N/A $5,000 

Net Change $5,000 



INDIAN RIVER COUNTY, FLORIDA 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Members of the Indian River County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

THROUGH: Robert M. Keating, AICP /lM.( 
Community Development Director 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Phillip J. Matson, AISJ-v:> /l 
MPO Staff Director ~ v I 

April30, 2013 

SUBJECT: Announcement of All Aboard Florida Passenger Rail Project Workshop 

It is requested that the information presented herein be given formal consideration by the Indian 
River County MPO at the meeting of May 8, 2013. 

DESCRIPTION, CONDITIONS & ANALYSIS 

Recently, Florida East Coast Industries, Inc. (FECI) announced the development of a privately 
owned and operated intercity passenger rail service project known as All Aboard Florida. Starting 
in 2015, the proposed daily passenger rail service will connect Orlando and Miami, with 
additional stations in Fort Lauderdale and West Palm Beach. 

Although no stations are proposed on the Treasure Coast, All Aboard Florida is hosting a series of 
public workshops in May 2013 to solicit public feedback regarding the system and to discuss 
potential concerns and environmental impacts. The Treasure Coast workshop is scheduled for 
Thursday, May 9, 2013, from 3:30pm -7pm at the Havert L. Penn Center, 2000 Virginia Avenue, 
Ft. Pierce, Florida. 

RECOMMENDATION 

This is an informational item only. No action is required. 

Attachments: 

1. All Aboard Florida Public Workshop Flyer 
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All Aboard Florida - Operations LLC (AAF) and the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) announce a series of 

Public Scoping Meetings/Open Houses concerning the preparation of an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) to 

evaluate the potential environmental and related impacts of constructing and operating an intercity passenger rail 

service proposed by AAF for a 235-mile intercity passenger railroad system that will connect Orlando and Miami, 

Florida, with intermediate stops in Fort Lauderdale and West Palm Beach, Florida (Project). The purpose of the EJS 

will be to provide FRA, cooperating and participating agencies, and the public with information to assess 

alternatives that will meet the Project's purpose and need; and to evaluate the potential environmental impacts, 

and identify potential avoidance/mitigation measures, associated with the proposed Project alternatives. 

The public, governmental agencies, and all other interested parties are invited to comment on the scope of the EIS. 

Comments may be provided orally or in writing at the following scoping meetings. 

Wednesday, May 1, 2013 

3:30 to 7 p.m. 

Renaissance Orlando Airport Hotel- Milan Ballroom 
5445 Forbes Place 

Orlando, FL 32812 

Monday, May 6, 2013 
3:30 to 7 p.m. 

Culmer Center- Multipurpose Room 
1600 NW 3'd Ave. 

Miami, FL 33136 

Tuesday, May 7, 2013 

3:30 to 7 p.m. 
Gaines Park Community Center- Addie Greene Hall East 
150.5 N .• ~.ustr,J!iac·, f\··:~ 

West Palm Beach, FL 33401 

Thursday, May 9, 2013 

3:30 to 7 p.m. 

Havert L. Fenn Center- Room 5 

2000 Virginia Ave. 

Fort Pierce, FL 34982 

There will be identical information provided at each of these meetings. Please come and share your thoughts. The 

public is invited to attend at any time during the hours of these meetings. Comments on the scope of the EJS may 

be mailed or emailed by May 15, 2013 to Catherine Dobbs, Transportation Industry Analyst, Office of Railroad 

Policy and Development, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE, Washington, DC 20590, or 

catherine .d ob bs@dot.gov. 

Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability or family 

status. Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who 

require translation services (free of charge) should contact Ali Soule at 305-520-2105 or eis@allaboardflorida.com 

at least seven days prior to the meeting. 

For more information, visit www.AIIAboardFiorida.com or contact Ali Soule at 30S-520-2105. 
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All Aboard Florida- Operations LLC (AAF) y Ia Administraci6n Federal de Ferrocarriles {FRA, par sus siglas en ingles) 

anuncian una serie de Reuniones Publicas/Sesiones de Puertas Abiertas acerca de Ia Declaraci6n del lmpacto 

Ambiental {EIS, par sus siglas en ingles) que se esta elaborando para evaluar los posibles impactos ambientales y 

otros impactos relacionados <J Ia construccion y operaci6n del servicio ferroviario interurbano de pasajeros 

propuesto par AAF (Proyecto). El sistema ferroviario interurbano de 235 millas de largo se extenderia entre 

Orlando y Miami, Florida, con paradas intermediarias en Fort Lauderdale y West Palm Beach, Florida. 

El proposito de Ia EIS ~s proporcionar a Ia FRAy a las agencias participantes, tanto como al publico en general, toda 

Ia informacion pertinente para Ia evaluacion de las alternativas de acuerdo al proposito y Ia necesidad del 

Proyecto; evaluar los posibles impactos ambientales; e identificar las posibles medidas de prevencion/mitigacion 

relacionadas con las alternativas. 

Se invita al publico en general, a los organismos gubernamentales, y otras partes interesadas, a proporcionar 

comentarios acerca del alcance de Ia EIS, ya sea verba/mente o par escrito, en las siguientes reuniones. 

Miercoles, 1 de mayo del 2013 
De 3:30 a 7 p.m. 

Renaissance Orlando Airport Hotel- Milan Ballroom 

5445 Forbes Place 

Orlando, FL 32812 

lunes, 6 de mayo del 2013 
De 3:30 a 7 p.m. 

Culmer Center- Multipurpose Room 

1600 NW 3rd Avenue 

Miami, FL 33136 

Martes, 7 de mayo del 2013 

Gaines Park Community Center -Addie Greene Hall East 

1505 ~J AustraliJn Averwe 

West Palm Be<Jch, FL 33.:101 

Jueves, 9 de mayo del 2013 

De 3:30 a 7 p.m. 

Havert L. Fenn Center- Salon 5 

2000 Vir·ginia Avenue 

Fort Pierce, FL 34982 

La informacion que se presentara en cada reunion sera identica. Le animamos a participar y a proporcionar sus 

comentarios. El publico tendra Ia oportunidad de llegar en cualquier momenta entre las 3:30p.m. y las 7 p.m. Los 

comentarios acerca del alcance de Ia EIS tambien pueden ser enviados a: Catherine Dobbs, Analista del Sector del 

Transporte, Departamento de Normas y Desarrollo, Administracion Federal de Ferrocarriles, 1200 New Jersey 

Avenue, SE, Washington, DC 20590, o par correo electronico a: catherine.dobbs@dot~. 

Se solicita Ia participaci6n del publico sin distincion de raza, color, origen nacional, edad, sexo, religion, 

discapacidad o estado familiar. Las personas que requieran asistencia especial segun Ia Ley de 1990 para 

Americanos con lmpedirnentos, o las personas que requieran servicio de traduccion (gratuito), deberan 

comunicarse a/ rnenos siete dfas antes de Ia audiencia publica, con Ali Soule al 305-520-2105 o enviando un correo 

electr6nico a eis@allaboardflorida.corn. 

Para mas informacion, par favor visite Ia pagina Web, www.AIIAboardFiorida.com, o comuniquese con Ali Soule al 

305-520-2105. 



INDIAN RIVER COUNTY, FLORIDA 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Members of the Indian River County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

THROUGH: Robert M. Keating, AICP /Lt.tt( 
Community Development Director 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Phillip J. Matson, AIC,P.;?')/1 
MPO Staff Director L· ? r I 

Brian Freeman, AICP ·0 V 
Senior Transportation Planner 

April 30, 2013 

SUBJECT: Status Report of Transit Development Plan (TOP) Major Update and Consideration 

of Consultant Presentation 

It is requested that the information presented herein be given formal consideration by the Indian 
River County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) at the meeting of May 8, 2013. 

SUMMARY 

According to state and federal regulations, the Indian River County MPO must 
prepare and adopt a Major Update of its Transit Development Plan (TOP) by 
September 30, 2013. In 2012, the MPO issued a Notice to Proceed (NTP) to its 
general planning consultants, Stanley Consultants, Inc. and the Center for Urban 
Transportation Research (CUTR), to initiate the TOP major update. Since then, the 
consultants have met regularly with MPO and Senior Resource Association (SRA) 
staff and have provided staff with a number of draft work products. Staff 
recommends that the MPO review the attached sections of the draft Transit 
Development Plan, consider the presentation at the May 8, 2013 meeting, and 
provide comments to staff. 

DESCRIPTION AND CONDITIONS 

According to state and federal regulations, the Indian River County MPO must prepare and adopt a 
Major Update of its Transit Development Plan (TOP) by September 30, 2013. Adoption of a TOP is 
required in order to receive grant funding under the Public Transportation Block Grant (PTBG) 
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program. That program provides approximately 25% of the operating costs ofthe transit system 
and is also used as a portion of the required 50% match for federal funds. 

In 2012, the MPO issued a Notice to Proceed (NTP) to its general planning consultant, Stanley 
Consultants, Inc., and its subconsultant, the Centerfor Urban Transportation Research (CUTR), to 
initiate the update. Since then, the county's TDP consultants have undertaken several preliminary 
TDP development activities. Those activities include drafting a public outreach plan, analyzing 
demographic trends within the community, and conducting a peer trend analysis of the county's 
fixed route (Goline) and demand response (Community Coach) transit systems. 

ANALYSIS 

One essential component of the TDP major update is public outreach. Consequently, one ofthe 
first activities undertaken by the consultant was development of a public outreach plan for the 
project. That outreach plan calls for surveying transit users and operators, conducting public 
workshops throughout the county, and reaching out to non-users at public locations. Late last 
year, transit system users were surveyed by the consultant. As part of that effort, onboard 
questionnaires were administered to 560 Goline passengers, while surveys were sent by mail to 
Community Coach passengers with a postage-paid return envelope. In addition, five public 
workshops were conducted throughout the county during February 2013. The consultants will be 
conducting additional public outreach activities in the coming months. Those activities will include 
interviews with key transit and community stakeholders; additional public workshops on system 
alternatives and proposals; and outreach to non-transit users. 

Besides conducting the public outreach efforts discussed above, the consultants have prepared a 
demographic assessment of the county and a peer trend analysis of the Go line and Community 
Coach systems. A peer trend analysis is an efficiency review ofthe system in comparison to other, 
similar systems. For Goline, the analysis included a review of operational and financial measures. 
Operational measures reflect the productivity of the transit system, while financial measures 
reflect the cost effectiveness of the system. 

According to the peer trend review, Goline provides a level of service above the peer average, 
while operating at the lowest cost within the peer group. In fact, Go line is among the top-rated 
systems by most measures and in most categories, including: 

• Revenue miles . 

• Revenue hours . 

• Vehicle miles per gallon . 

• Passenger trips . 

• Passenger miles . 

• Total operating expense . 

• Total maintenance expense . 

• Operating expense per capita . 
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• Operating expense per passenger trip. 
• Operating expense per revenue hour. 

• Maintenance expense per vehicle mile. 

While Goline is among the most efficient systems, there are a few operational measures where 
Go line is below the peer median. Those measures include vehicle spare ratio and the average age 
of the fleet. 

The peer trend analysis also included a review of the Community Coach demand response (or 
door-to-door) service. In that analysis, Community Coach scores better than its peers in some 
categories, worse than its peers in some categories, and near the peer average in many others. 
Categories in which Community Coach scores highest include number of vehicles available, vehicles 
operated in maximum service, revenue miles between failures and operating expense per 
passenger trip. Categories in which Community Coach scores below its peers include passenger 
trips per vehicle operated in maximum service, passenger trips per revenue hour, passenger trips 
per revenue mile, and operating expense per revenue hour. 

At the May 8, 2013 meeting, the TDP consultants will update the MPO on the status ofthe TDP 
Major Update. Upcoming steps in the development ofthe TDP include the identification of goals, 
objectives, and policies; development and analysis of strategic initiatives; a fare structure analysis; 
a Transit Quality of Service (TQOS) evaluation; and preparation of a ten-year implementation 
program. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the MPO review the attached sections ofthe draft Transit Development 
Plan, consider the presentation at the May 8, 2013 meeting, and provide comments to staff. 

ATTACHMENT 

1. Draft Transit Development Plan (TDP) Technical Memoranda 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

CHAPTER ONE 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY COMMUNITY CHARACTERISTICS 

DEMOGRAPHICS, ECONOMICS AND TRAVEL CHARACTERISTICS 

-::F;~:J;.·-~1~· 
'/,J!: ··,-t; 

An understanding of the environment within which the lndian,Aqiver County transit system 

operates is important when planning for future development. T~is' J;>,ter provides a descriptive 

overview of the community, including the demographic and s'~Cioecofl6~ixconditions within the 

County. The demographic and the socioeconomic chp.r~6t~ristics of tti~',,·qqunty were largely 

derived from the 2010 Decennial Census and the>Ameri~~n Communify.~S.~;~rvey (ACS). A 

description of each of these two data sources and:tb.ei( strengths and limitatiohs,(p.re presented 

below. . ···tt\rr. 

2010 Decennial Census 
·.;:; .. 

,."\~;.~.' .T. 

;;j~\i·;;;?~: ~(. 
...... ~/. 

The 201 0 Decennial Census is the most c~,tp~;~'He~§J,y~,recent da,f~.~~vailable for evaluating the 

demographic and socioeconomic characteri§'tics qf'th'~ 'Cb9nty/ Decennial Census figures are 

based on actual counts ofp~'r:l?oRs residing in tnk US andiserve as the basis for apportioning 

seats in the United, States A&ll$e of Repr~$entatives ... They are also used for in-state 

redistricting and distrYbJtibn of Fede-fal funds to states and localities. 
,'·">! ; . ~ .: . ! • 

During the. ,,o~d~rtmi,al ,,Censbs~·p~~ces~;±th~' Gens us Bureau collects detailed demographic, 

socioecqndrnic, a~c{ no~'sjng infclrm51tion at the county, census tract, census block group, and 
/ 

1
:.( l)'·) . ""\:''.'.:. -~M;:·.~ ··,. . ·;~,~:'~ .. ; • ~. 1:·:. · ...• • 

the pei.gllbqrhood level.''''::rtte Cerisgs~~data provide vital information about a community's 
.. · "1".;'~:+:."·: "11\'i':'t:'> >:.:_:::·· 

demograpqip.:~,,composition, {pq,luding :a description of traits such as age, sex, race, ethnicity, 

household inboiJl,~, auto-own~:~$hip, and age characteristics. 

··); 

Beginning in 201 o;W!e.c,lJ~rCensus Bureau eliminated the census "long-form" questionnaire and 

instead distributed orilyi:;,the census "short-form" questionnaire. In the past, the US Census 

Bureau sent the short''form questionnaire to most housing units and the long form questionnaire 

to a sample of about 17% of households. In 2010, the long-form questionnaire, which historically 

collected detailed socioeconomic and housing data from a sample of the population, was 

replaced with the American Community Survey (ACS). The ACS data are further described in 

the next section. 

• 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

The 201 0 short form questionnaire asked only for age, sex, race, and ethnicity of each person in 

the household, as well as the individual's relationship to the person filling out the form. The 

change from long form data to ACS data has impacted the ability to collect data at -the 

neighborhood level due to potential errors resulting from a smaller sample size of the ACS data 

compared to the historical long form sample size. 

This report largely uses the 2010 Decennial Census data for demographic and socioeconomic 

indicators and supplements the information with the 2011 ACS dat ,.~tb~r sources of data are 

also used where available to develop a demographic overview.o rrent conditions in Indian 
/ ' . ·''"~ 

R~r~u~. ~
7

~) 

2011 American Community Survey 

<< .. :) 

The U.S. Census Bureau has recognized the'': GbCJ.IIenges .Jaced by conikJlJnliies when 

demographic data are available only on a decenni~i·;;b·a · ,,;Jil':response, the C~nsus Bureau 
developed the American Community Survey (ACS) in 2o6'" ...... .. 

·<;\::;1_:~9 .,. :-"~ .. ,. .. ·~, · -~~,H::;J;. ·:_;_:, 
ACS is a "continuous measurement" surv~y;-~gr:ru~Jing between•25Q,l;OOO- 300,000 households 

per month from 2005 through 2011. ACS gcilJh~r~r::,~~g~.ly,the sam~:28ata as its predecessor, the 

census long form. Since the sample size fofif,\CS.is/~ilfMet•;tha~· the sample size for the long 
·:: ·r:r' ·: :/ .. ·--~-:ii:~ :· .\;,: ·' · ;.;.,·:.;.:··~; ;, 

form, the data are aggreggteti;EI,tthe county lev~!,· · · 

(/.·.:~:·~;~~);;::,~::->, ::\=~-~r,=? =.-: .. : .: 

The ACS provides·anriCI:~b:.qata forj:areas with populations of at least 65,000 people, including 

about 800 counti~s, and·<~g'pW 50Q\'tLl~tr.8,Pe>lit<tn:>~nd micropolitan statistical areas. For less 

populous ~1w~as;['·ih~·· \;Jr,eau pili" ces ;nUiti2y~~r averages based on ACS data collected over 

several ... ~~rs. In Dec ; ~~ 201 first five-year averages became available for areas from 

the r:nct' . pulous to thd~~~~With fewe~··tnan 20,000 people. The 2011 one-year ACS data has 
.:_, . ,_, . >: .. i T\)r·.':. ;;;;::··'· 

been usedn,,<it.bis report to sl(pplement the 2010 Decennial Census data. 
d~;-_..,. .. ··:j"~ 

·=--,;.·~;::.=.~.:~\··.(; ;.~c;:< 

The two above-listed. data sources were combined to provide a current demographic profile of 
. . . i< .. ; 

Indian River County!ei'lv,~il$ 'these sources may not necessarily be in agreement with the actual 

numbers, the data s'9hrces will be identified when discussing the detailed demographic 
•i/ 

conditions within the County. 

STUDY AREA SETTING 

Indian River County is located along the southeast Atlantic coast of Florida. It is bordered by 

Brevard County to the north, Osceola and Okeechobee Counties to the west and St. Lucie 

County to the south. The County's geography is characterized by its extensive coastlines and 

• 

Indian River County and the Community 

------------------~ -------------------
Chapter 1 



INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

waterways. In fact, the County was named after the Indian River Lagoon which stretches the 

entire length of the County's eastern border. Of the County's 617 total square miles, over 18 

percent is water, and there are nearly 23 miles of Atlantic coastline. Proximity to the water and 

recreational activities make Indian River County desirable to visitors and residents alike, 

resulting in more densely populated areas in the eastern portion of the County. This is in sharp 

contrast to the central and western portions of the County which are more rural in nature, with 

agriculture being the predominant industry. 

'.,ilf ..... 

There are five municipalities in Indian River County (Fellsmere ian River Shores, Orchid, 

Sebastian and Vero Beach). While Vero Beach had the la~ge <,1 j~pulation as of the 2000 

census, Sebastian surpassed Vero Beach in 2010, wit~, g'f~~h of"?~~P,~pximately 36 percent 
between 2000 and 2010. d:.~Jr,w. ,, • 

,:, .,,,.,, 
,:ii'h-~ ·,. ~: .. , 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND SOCIOECONOMIC D~71]A . 

Population Characteristics 

Indian River County has experienced a s;~f~~:;io.c:r~q,se in po~ula ,,bi;d~er the last two decades. 
'":.\ . : ···v:_-:,~ .:->'Jft· .. ~ :-,." ;:·~:t .. 

Between 1990 and 2000, the County experl~rced·a:,;?&J>{<>-'i!infreas€f'in population from 90,206 to 

112,947. Between 2000 anc:t.f010, the CouritY,,e,xp~~i~~b~dL:;~,;.22% increase in population from 

112,947 to 138,028. The··'tr:s~·::census Bure~o::~ estimate{show a one percent increase in 
:\·~:' '·>'f? .. ::::\ "}.) 

population between 201.Pand 201;1'!:; 
. : ~Jt. •"\";i, ... 

; ··:·~·"/ \! 

Indian River C,guf}!t.s gro~~Jk,~ts1 ·]~"'riB'ffi:~.9-,~i:!!:?JeJ6 the growth rates of Brevard County and the 
(. :"-':«:{'. h~~- :':'·:::?,"'< ·~ >~ '1 -~·=·<.· :.·. . .... ,<].'(:;:+it::: ·/" 

State of r:t~riea•as5 ~:~~.~gJe, bul•f. · less thEfffthe bordering counties of St. Lucie and Osceola 
(See 1·~;9]13' 1-1). ·f··;;t<;:. ' 

; \~;~;'1~~::::,, 

'<~t 

Chapter I 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Table 1-1 

2000- 2011 Population Change by County and State 

112,947 138,028 22% 1% 

Florida 15,982,378 18,801,310 18% 1% 

Brevard County 476,230 543,376 0% 

Osceola County 172,493 268,685 3% 

St. Lucie County 192,695 277,789 1% 

*Source: 2010 Census and 2011 American Community 

,;;":";';;.. '" 

,;;"':;;~i;:t\j{f/;.;~··' 

Figure 1-1 displays the County's total pppulation at the biB'oR;s.group level and its relationship to 

Indian River County's fixed route bus ·;~zyic. (Goline). Alt~~~gh total population provides 

valuable information, it is not very usefufl: .. m r[~on purpoi~~~:'p~imarily due to the large 
).:; 

differences in geographical area between thg bloc rig\Jp§~ lnsJe~d, an analysis of population 

densities (defined as persops•,J.J~f square mile)':,IJJP:k~s th~ d~~~~rison more useful from a transit 

service perspective wQ,eh. 66rl,~~[,ing populatr(,n between two geographically and spatially 

similar areas. 
. ·~~' 

Figure 1-2 dj§p!ay§ the Cqqrjty•s'' pop~lc;!tion:,·densities at the block group level and its 
. . : ;H'.::.>::~r~.r:~~, tn/,,.;·.. ".:(:!:'~;.:~..- ··· .. .;:.!;/c·· . .::'"j\;~' 

relatlons~!Jl>'itettne· Gp51J1l.~fixedz:r;C)Hte bus serv1ce. As illustrated in the figure, the most densely 

popul'1l$~~ areas of th~TOR~pty afe'.':lo9,9,led around Vera Beach on the south side of SR 60 

arouri'CI u$\rL the South C'a~Qty porttdM~'~f the eastern mainland, and in Sebastian in the area 
~'*··:< "'/l>· 0:): . .:·::;,: ' 

generally s64fh,pf CR 512 an<:;tnorth of CR 510 between Barber Street and US 1. There is also 

a small pock~f''bfhigher popSl~tion density at the southwest corner of the intersection of CR 510 
'':("':"?~ ~?''·· '''!"'. ·: 

and CR 512 in Ve'f()lake§rEstates. Most of these areas have some level of transit coverage, 
··1:!.;-··::+ ... /:.'·;,·" 

with the exception ofRgjnciana Park, and the neighborhoods west of the Indian River Mall. 

_c_ha_p_wr_I ____________________________ ~~----------1-nd_w_n_R_iv_"_c_ou_n_ry_an_d_~_e_c_om_m_u_ni __ ry 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Figure 1-1 ,,, 

Total Population (201 0) By Census Block ,~i'6u~ 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Figure 1-2 

Population Density (201 0) By Census Block G,f;Q~ps 
, ... r·. -~.: .. 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

An evaluation of the areas where the greatest amount of growth is occurring can assist in 

identifying where future transit demand is likely to occur as well as determine what types of 

services may be most appropriate. 

Changes in population for the five municipalities and the unincorporated areas of Indian River 

County are displayed in Table 1-2. Between 2000 and 2010, Sebastian surpassed Vero Beach 

as the County's largest municipality, with a growth rate of approximately 36 percent over the 

decade. Vero Beach experienced a 14 percent decline in total ,R,~pUI?~ion during that time 

period. Fellsmere also experienced a growth rate of approximately;\{3'6 percent over the decade. 

Table 1- 2 

2000 - 2011 Population Cha 

Age Distribution 

As illustrated in J:able 2011 age distribution in Indian River County tends to be 
... ,:, ···::.i.-·.;,: .. :y;;; 

somewhat older than that of neighboring counties and the State of Florida. Indian River County 
:i;r,.-··· , .. 

has the lowest percentage of individuals aged 54 and younger and the highest percentage of 

individuals aged 65 years and older. In the category of individuals aged 55-64, Indian River 

County is 6~;fflsi9tent with thJ16~her communities listed in the table . 

. - ... ~" : 
.:t .. = ... :.!:· 

''~u}r··:\:·l'· 
·:.;,a." .,._ 

<;!~,:~;~· 

• 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Table 1· 3 

Population Age Distribution (2011) 

Indian River County 19% 16% 23% 14% 

Florida 21% 22% 27% 13% 

Brevard County 19% 18% 27% 

Osceola County 26% 23% 

St. Lucie County 22% 18% 

Source: 2011 American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates (roundE;l,c! 

,, .. ' -;:;, 

Figure 1-3 displays the population density of indivigU'~Is over, 65 years of . 

groups in Indian River County. The areas with th~'ljJgopst de·a§iJy of resident~ 
and older) are as follow: · · , . ,,,<·1 

· 

'·:::1':::.::;_,, 

28% 

17% 

21% 

11% 

21% 

• The west SR 60 corridor betwekrt,:lr;lterstate 95 ancJ,,'.e§~~ Avenue (Pointe West, Vista 

Plantation, Indian River Estates) \)L:< ' . ' < ,. . · <.k.:'. ' ,. 
The south US 1 corridor north of Oslq•Hoad tVfsta;:8oyale, ,{!ista Gardens) 

• ::..'.,_ .il,. ·-\~-~-:·V:i··':. ,. 
• 

,. <<~·:-.:.e<.i ;. '\-=.::,:. "<+·· .. _<:" .::~iJ . ? ~; ~.;:r· 
Other areas of mod~giteiY<1 bigb density of\'seniors are located in Vero Beach (Rock 

Ridge/Oakmont P~r~,,;:?Tropic':'f;;::,~(13rove, Gle~.9ale East), Sebastian East, Sebastian 

North/Roseland, and s~Ctions of th~'North Barrier l$1and to the south of Wabasso Bridge Road. 
·; <};~; ;l;:_:n <:\;i,1/1r;N?: T· ..- · · 

"0 ; ·~::·T·i·)( 

_c_ha_p_rer_z __________________________ ~~~----------1-n-dw_n_R_iv-er_c_ou_n_ry_an_d_~_e_c_om_m_u_ni __ ry 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Figure 1- 3 

Population Density Over Age 65 (2011) 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Figure 1-4 displays the census block groups that have the highest density of individuals who are 

18 years of age and younger. That group may have a high propensity to use transit due to 

limited accessibility to a vehicle or the absence of a driver's license. The highest concentrations 

of younger residents are in the Fellsmere, Rock Ridge, Tropic Grove, Glendale East and 

Rosewood areas. Downtown Vera Beach and Central Sebastian also have higher 

concentrations of younger people, but not as high as the other areas referenced above. 

• 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Figure 1-4 

Population Density Under 18 Years of Age (2Q.l:.~) 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Race and Ethnicity 

Table 1-4 shows the race and ethnic composition of Indian River County residents compared to 

the State of Florida and the neighboring counties. Less than 12 percent of the population is 

considered Hispanic/Other. Of the Non-Hispanic population, more than 77 percent are White, 

and less than 9 percent are Black. Indian River County has relatively fewer Hispanic and Black 

residents compared to the statewide average and neighboring St. Lucie County. The race and 

ethnic characteristics of Indian River County are somewhat similar toii~~av~rd County. 
,-,~,<- .. ., ' 

An understanding of race and ethnic characteristics can be'';:':U~~ft,JJ to a transit agency in 
,<~-/.:~ '·~:e<;',~:tL 

identifying the appropriate format and media for public O!Jtr'i§ach and<C,pmmunication activities. 

Additionally, minority populations generally represent a+O'i~:herpercentag~z'6f,"transit users in the 
1'""·"':Y ·-,,. ,·,:><·i=:.~f-:~ 

Unites States. ,;;w1; 
·;:;<>~~:- __ '{;, 

/?; ~·- ·.··> 
··: .. ;.·,>.-

Table 1- 4 '.r: ~. 

Race/Ethnicity of Total Populajlp 

15.2% 

77.6% 9.7% 

40.3% 9.1% 

61.2% 18.5% 

• 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Educational Attainment 

Table 1-5 shows the educational attainment of Indian River County residents compared to the 

State of Florida residents. 

Table 1-5 

Educational Attainment (2011) 
tl·.·· ... 

Indian River County;y1.' ··· 
,. 

Florida 
Educational Attainment 

18-24 Yrs 25+ ~r~.\~i:'';; 18-24 Yrs 25+ Yrs 

Less Than 91h Grade - <;%o/o "l~{~\liL - 6% 
9th to 1ih Grade, No Diploma - ;:''~~;.). jd;o '' 0!~it,. 8% 

Less Than High School Grad 21% .J;. ,.;;,' - f8'\f~1i;; -
High School Grad or Equivalent 4 1 o;,;c'~;, :. 31;f/o 30o/~;~t:~ ~; ;.,.,/ 30o/o 

Some College, No Degree ·~ , >r'i'{ '': 23~{' ·9 - 'f'· 21% 

Some College or Assoc. Degree 31% ,rh;·~,)Z ' 44% -
Associates Degree - 'L')~~o/0 - 9% 
Bachelor's Degree ··;,. I;J - 1'7~6!,. - 17% 

Bachelor's Degree or Higher I''· ':: Z%o, > - "''i ":'; ,·• 
8% -

Graduate or Professional Degree ·t~. ~· ., ·. ':r;;,,.~\; ',.;.'''''···· 10% ,37 - 9% 
Source: 2011 American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates">· :+ ; 1':;;>",?;:'' ; 

The key differences b~t\,V~erl 'tfi·~.:iJQdian River Cpunty and the State of Florida are found in the 

18-24 age group, wnrb'h''are sumrr;'~r'ized below: .. 
,, J.\ ..... ,.:,.):. .. -. .... ; 

·.:.i 

·· : .. ~:=~·- !.·:;?::· .=~·.·: .~:(f~·_:: .. :,r~-;;::-, .. T.· ... :·. . ... · 
• lndia'l. f1i~er, CountY'tr¢9idehts'ag~c:f,'J8-24 tend to be less well-educated (having 

f' ·<··,_ .. : .·.~:· .. ;.·;,~·~::( ·<;;( ·. :,. ~ .:_.<"?\\ • . ; ..... , . 
COmpleted SOm.e.CQIIege O(>m!gher) compared to the stateWide average. 

• :f't1bre Indian Ri~~i:'~ounty '~,~S~:41year olds have not completed high school (21 percent) 
· .. , . '·' ·~-~~::>·.PL <;:.; ... ;:~:: ··.· 'y,,: ~;~~·:· 

c'orpp,9-red to the stat~VII;ide average (18 percent). 

• Mor~·;:iiQOiEln River Cd~~ty 18~24 year olds have only a high school diploma (41 percent) 
';,·:··/\\:\, ;.f::.:.~,i 

comparec:J,fo the statewide average (30 percent). ,,, /;/ 

• By contras •·.,. · e.r::·l'hdian River County 18-24 year olds have attended college (31 
-,~·--, 

percent) compe:[ed to the average statewide (44 percent). 

The distribution of all other educational categories is similar. 

_c_ha_p_re_rz----------------------------~~----------1-n-dw_n_R_iv-er_c_ou_n_o/_an_d_ffi_e_c_om_m_u_ni __ o/ 
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Income Characteristics 

Income is another important factor in assessing transportation needs and the use of public 

transportation systems. In general, low income persons are more likely to rely upon public 

transportation for mobility and access to jobs, shopping, medical services and recreational 

activities, than more affluent individuals. Table 1-6 shows a comparison of the distribution of 

median household income in Indian River County to the surrounding counties and the State of 

Florida. In general, the comparison reveals few differences. /:·•f~~.\. 
<'' ;-' l, _,(JJ/ 

Table 1-6 
,, '< 

Household Income Distributip~':(?011) '"··':·::: 

6% 7% 9% 17% 

Florida 8% 6% 11% 16% 

Brevard 
7% 5% 11% 17% 

County 
Osceola 

10% 11% 
County 

19% 10% 11% 

Source: 2011 

s~'rt 
Figure}; depicts households incomes of less than $15,000 by census block 

)''·· ' -.•,':]{' '' ... 
groups. · ··" .. ·'"fublock groups·~~iJh the .• concentration of lower income households are 

'\!~::. :>?:~,,- .:r~r:· 
located in doWntown Sebastiaril, Vero Beach Northeast, Gifford and the Rock Ridge/Oakmont 

Park neighborh'5-~QS,, The Hi;~fand and Fellsmere neighborhoods also contain a high number of 
":';:';)::<t:, /:-:>t 

households with an '"' ·ncomes below $15,000, which are distributed throughout their larger 
;,>~ 

census block groups. 

This data set was selected because it depicts the poverty level for a two person household. 

Indian River County's average household occupancy is just slightly higher than two persons per 

household. 

• 

Indian River County and the Community 
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Figure 1-5 

Annual Household Income< $15,000 (201H:., 
,,;, :.-.1-; 

~ Brevard 
County 

St. Lude 
County ~ 
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Another factor to consider is poverty, which is a different index than income. The U.S. Census 

Bureau bases poverty levels on the number of persons living in the household, and thresholds 

of income based on the number of persons. Household income data are from the household 

data set of the U.S. Census. Table 1-7 provides the income levels defining the poverty threshold 

based on the number and type of residents in a household for the entire United States. Based 

on data from the 2011 ACS 1-year estimates, 18,530 Indian River County residents (13.5% of 

the population) had incomes below the poverty level. This is slightly lower than the State of 

Florida which had 17% of the total population living below the in 2011. 

Table 1-7 

~c~naillp~k~rlr---------------------------~~----------------------------------
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Automobile Ownership and Availability 

Table 1-8 shows the distribution of vehicle availability among households in Indian River County 

compared to the State of Florida and other counties in the region. Lack of vehicle availability is a 

key indicator of the propensity to use transit. As of 2011, Indian River County's household 

vehicle availability was comparable to the State of Florida and surrounding counties. 

Table 1-8 

-",< :L 

Location Number of Vehi'6Ies Aviil';:tble 
per Occupi~d H~using U~lt,,, 

Zero One Two Three or 
More 

Indian River County 6.4% 47.2% 37.1% 9.3% 
Florida 7.3% 41.7% 37.8% 13.1% 
Brevard County 4.3% 43.6% 38.6% 13.5% 
Osceola County 7.9% 37.5% 40.8% 13.8% 
St. Lucie County 7.0% 45.5% 36.0% 11.5% 

., : ;;> ""'· 

Source: 2011 American Community Surve~cj -Y~a~ ~~tiMates. )'' 
";?::·;~·T=·;.;;··· .. 

' 
Figure 1-6 displays the ntimbek1,gf1rgouseholds p~r square mile with zero vehicle availability. The 

·';'i L :i·W, '<; 

most densely populgt(;),p .. 13Jeas witq,'czero vehicle Cf¥ailability are generally located in the eastern 

areas of the County, ln~lu~ing Giff~r.o. and in Fell~iti.~re where the GoLine provides the greatest 
'•:,•;c';';',:·. ,;j;,,;;,;,:'..;,:· 'T ·'·· ,.,, 

level of geogra iq serviceez0gr~a <!ovef~9~r~~Q'Never, there is still a considerable number of 
"·' ; ·' "(,.;/·; <~;·~;-i: ~)?:... : .".<;\",ft-~7., ~ >;.':~ 

households@rt enttal and western areas ·anhe County with zero vehicle availability. 
·" v~'" ""''<::!f::!.i:,;;:f~:~ .~ 

• 
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Figure 1-6 

Zero Vehicle Availability (2011) 

"!; 

"' 

Brevard 

County 

Households per Square Mile with Zero Vehicles 
0-24 

25-49 

~~"~~~ 51 - 99 

- 100 or greater 

"" 

St. Lucie 
County !.I 
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Work Commuting Patterns 

Table 1-9 shows the work commute patterns for Indian River County residents employed 

outside the home in 2011 , compared to the State of Florida and surrounding counties. The 

analysis reveals that Indian River County residents had shorter commute times than residents 

throughout the State and other counties in the region with one minor exception. More than 80% 

of the County residents travel less than 30 minutes to work. Brevard County has the next lowest 
AiC, 

commute time with less than 70% of its residents traveling less than,~O"minutes to work. 
__ /4{: ~ ~-

10-14 minutes 

15-19 minutes 

20 - 24 minutes 

The County W 

Package (CTPP) 

Table 1-9 

18.7% ].1% 11.8% 

19.1% 19.5% 

13.6% 20.3% 

6.4% 5.6% 

22% 14.8% 

5.7% 9.6% 4.2% 

5.1% 13.6% 8.2% 

6.6% 9.2% 9.0% 

25.0 30.6 27.0 

' were primarily collected from the Census Transportation Planning 

uses the census data as the base information. The CTPP is a set of 

special tabulations designed by transportation planners using large sample surveys conducted 

by the Census Bureau. From 1970 to 2000, the CTPP and its predecessor, UTPP, used data 

from the decennial census long form. Since the decennial census long form has now been 

replaced with ACS, the CTPP now uses the ACS sample for the special tabulation. 

Chapter 1 

• 
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The first CTPP that used the ACS was the 2006-2008 CTPP. That CTPP used three years of 

the ACS and was restricted to geographic units with population of 20,000 or more. The 2006-

2010 CTPP, using five years of ACS, will not be available until May 2013 and will include small 

geographic units such as census tracts and Transportation Analysis Zones (TAZs). This report 

uses the latest available 2006-2008 CTPP data. 

Tables 1-10 and 1-11 display commute patterns from the CTPP based on the 2006-2008 ACS 

data. The 2006-2008 3-Year ACS estimates are the latest availa~l;~ji<:lat~ for the CTPP. The 

CTPP data report that 45,565 Indian River County residents liveAn~ work within the County. A 

majority of intercounty commuter outflows and inflows occur tq,
1
grifai,rom St. Lucie and Brevard 

,./1' :7 ''"'•'. '\{ ;:f~. 

counties. 
..··-:;> ;; .. 

{ ,,~.; ·.:.t"" 
f}r 

Table 1-10" 

CTPP Commuter Outflow Esti gc:a~:t~u on '2'006-2008 ACSb~f~"', 

1,595 

570 

520 

385 

430 

80 

70 

Osceola County 55 

Okeechobee County 45 

Duval County 45 

Polk County 30 

Indian River County Pinellas County 20 

Chapter 1 
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Table 1-11 

CTPP Commuter Inflow Estimates Based on 2006-2008 ACS Data 

Indian River County 

St. Lucie County 

Brevard County 

Palm Beach County 

Broward County 

Miami-Dade County 

Orange County 

Osceola County 

Martin County 

Hillsborough County 

Okeechobee County 

Employment C 

Chapter 1 

ize.i!'of'clhe) labbl~·,fdrcer;16 years of age and older to the total population 

86% of Indian River's civilian labor force is employed. 

, .. v.;o:•~;;., ... ~yunty is higher than the statewide unemployment rate. 

· rate in the County was 5% and was 1% lower than the 

Table 1-12 

Indian River County 60,207 52% 14% 

Florida 9,327,307 60% 12% 

Source: 2011 American Community Survey 

• 
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Table 1-13 contains the distribution of employment in Indian River County by the type of 

industry in 2011. The highest concentration of jobs occurs in the education/health/social service 

sector (22%), followed by the Professional/Management/Administrative sector (15%) and Retail 

Trade sector (13%). In comparison, the highest concentration of jobs was in the construction 

industry (16%) in 2006. 

Table 1-13 

Indian River County Employment by Type 

Indian Rive' ' Qunty does n,oi1 collect data regarding the number of individual visitors to the 
~~~·.it., ~f(' ' 

County. Table '1i2~;ldisplays;,;tourism tax revenues collected for FY 2007-08 through FY 2011-

12. Variations in~hnual taxgs collected can be attributed to the number of visitors and/or their 
-:~::'.it~)~'\.>.;··~ :-':.;>j 

expenditures. Betweef;l:,tFY 2007-08 and FY 2008-09, tax revenue dropped by 13 percent; 

however, it has experienced a steady increase since then. The tax revenue in FY 2011-12 were 

approximately 7.5 percent higher than FY 2007-08. 

• 
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Table 1-14 

Indian River County Tourism Tax Revenues 

November $87,469.97 $89,438.23 $96,897.79 

December $104,579.45 $105,859.87 $143,039.60 

January $187,660.58 $155,326.57 $156,572.85 

February $205,581.28 $158,214.09 

March $269,198.21 $199,262.3]1 

April $123,880.44 

May $97,484.04 $100,924.91 

June $95,551.88 $100,243.91 

July $126,841.56 

August $83,399.99 $95,602.41 

September $74,479.86 $69,253.75 

$1 ,443,485.80 $1 ,609,884.13 

_c_ha_p_rer_z ___________________________ ~r-----------m-d_w_nR_i_ve_rc_o_un_ry_a_nd_~_e_c_om_m_u_ney __ 
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

INTRODUCTION 

This chapter summarizes the results of the performance evaluation of Indian River County's 
fixed route (Goline) and demand response (Community Coach) systems operated by Senior 
Resource Association, Inc. The performance evaluation was conducted using a sample of peer 
systems that have operating characteristics similar to Goline and Community Coach and serve 
areas with demographics similar to those of Indian River Cou,pt~:;'t;, 

i'<·""; 
"-'~ ~-T'' ., 

Purpose of a Performance Review 

A performance review is one method of evaluatil]gt~~K~;t~~~fOffTiance and consists of those 
aspects of the transit agency's operation that q~ni6,e measured qqf.H1Jitatively with data from a 
standard reporting instrument, in this case th~·f'.tational Transit Datab~~~ (NTD). A performance 
review does not, however, provide insight intoiftru::l quality of service Or.th13, level of passenger 
satisfaction. On-board surveys and other public invqlyemenrf!ctivities are u~~d to complement 

the performance review. :,,: .• ;P;.
0 

:.' · •· •· 
··: .. -~~,:~;~··:,<~:·.=·iF>:·· . . \, .. __ :,.·;_·_, ..: .. 

The performance review does not disJirWUiS9:·q~tween certiHP, aspects of performance that are 
within the control of the agency and t~ope fhl:tt~.9f7.not. Locat.policy decisions on land use, 
zoning, and parking, for.ra~~tnple, often dict9te th~ ty~~s.and I~Vrai~;Qf service best suited for the 
community. Operating,e~p~nse;,,i~tone perto'hnanc~rri'ea~t.ire us~d in this analysis. Operating 
expenses can vary··gr~atly betwe~n tran~\t·.·§y$tems based' on work rules and collective 
bargaining agreements. ", 

National. l)ra.nsi.t Da~abase •' 

To rec~rl/~ Iederal·f~~d~;·•,tr:~Iit';ggencies ar~'' required to report a variety of data in a 
standardized· format to the':'Eedera(T:fl:tn§it Administration (FTA). Those data get compiled into 

~·::'·:.· .·,: .. ~ · .. ·~_w:. )\ · ....... 7V·~ . .,:·'· 
the NationaHT;,[9nsit Databas'eW(J\JTD). The NTD provides standardized measures of reporting 
that enable a ~Qr~ .. ~ccurate 6Q~parison of information between agencies. Since 1979, when 
this reporting requir~r11~nt was ,ii').~tituted, additional refinements in data collection and reporting 
have increased the accdracy an~fcomparability of the data. 

,•":> .. : ..• .... ·;;; .. : ... ;;·.:::;, 

Data Reliability - All NTD,8data submitted to FTA are subject to considerable review and 
validation through manual and automated methods. Each report is thoroughly examined by 
FTA's data analysts for identification of any errors or inconsistencies. The analysts then notify 
the reporting agency of those errors and require the agency to resubmit its data after addressing 
FTA's concerns. Once FTA is satisfied with the data, the final report is accepted. The latest 
validated NTD data are from fiscal year (FY) 2010. This report uses FY 2010 data for the peer 
analysis and uses the most recent five complete years of NTD data available (2006-201 0) to 
examine trends. For this performance review, no original data were collected and no audits or 
on-site analyses were conducted. 

Performance Evaluation 
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Data Definitions- The term "passenger trip" refers to an individual boarding a transit vehicle. A 
person riding a bus from the corner near his home to the office takes one passenger trip and a 
second passenger trip to return home. A person transferring from one bus to another is counted 
as two passenger trips. In spite of the definitions and continued refinements in data collection 
procedures, some discrepancies and double counting remain in the NTD system reports. 

Performance Measure Categories - The evaluation measures that are used throughout the 
performance review are divided into two major categories: operational measures and financial 
measures. Operational measures indicate the productivity qnd effectiveness of day-to-day 
transit operations. Financial measures display the overall ~xp,~hses and revenues, as well as 

4':; ;,',,-;,;.'<J,,,,';v' 

the cost efficiency and effectiveness of the system. Thos~H~~t~gories are further subdivided into 
service characteristics, vehicle utilization, servic~f'ii,i.JJIII:~C!Uon/productivity, and financial 

;_ .. ;;R.).:.' ···.·,•,:w<.: 
measures. Performance measures that typically pr,qyide;a godthr~presentation of overall transit 
system performance have been selected for this.:(~.vlew. · \(~ ; . 

. ;,:·;.'·Wi · ,. )Y · 
,.· T.rf':·: 

• Perfonnance Evaluation 
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PART ONE: FIXED-ROUTE TRANSIT SERVICE 

Tables 1 and 2 show the performance measures selected for the review of Goline's fixed route 
transit service as well as the definitions of each measure. Table 1 outlines the operational 
measures and Table 2 outlines the financial measures. 

Table 1 
Selected Performance Review Measures 

Operational Measures 

Service Area Population - Approximation of market size for comparison of relative spending 
and service levels among communities in the absence of actual service area population. 
Service Area Density - Person per square mile based on service area population and size 
reported to the NTD. 
Average Speed- Revenue miles of service divided by revenue hours of service. 
Vehicle Miles -Miles a vehicle is scheduled to or actually travels from the time it pulls out from 
the garage to go into revenue service to the time it pulls in from revenue service. 
Revenue Miles- Number of miles a vehicle operates while in active service (available to pick 
up revenue passengers). 
Revenue Miles I Vehicle Miles Ratio - Ratio of miles in active service to total miles traveled 
including to/from garage. 
Revenue Hours- Number of hours a vehicle operates while in active service (available to pick 
up revenue passengers). 
Total Employee Full Time Equivalents (FTEs) - Total number of labor hours for one year 
divided by 2080 hours. 

, ' Jlehicle Utilization " 
Vehicles Available - Number of vehicles available to meet maximum service requirements, 
including spares, out-of-service vehicles and vehicles awaiting maintenance. 
Vehicles Operated in Maximum Service (VOMS) - Number of vehicles operated in maximum 
(peak) service. 
Spare Ratio - Difference between vehicles available for maximum service, and vehicles 
operated in maximum service, divided by vehicles operated in maximum service. 
Revenue Miles per VOMS - Number of revenue miles divided by vehicles operated in 
maximum service. 
Revenue Hours per Employee FTE - Number of revenue hours divided by employee full time 
equivalents. 
Vehicle Miles per Gallon - Number of vehicle miles divided by gallons of fuel consumed. 
Revenue Miles between Failures - Number of revenue miles divided by the number of vehicle 
system failures. 
Average Age of Fleet (in years) -Total age of all vehicles in fleet divided by number of fleet 
vehicles. 

Performance Evaluation 
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Service Utilization and Productivity 
Passenger Trips- Number of passenger boardings. 
Passenger Miles- Number of passenger trips multiplied by the system's average trip length. 
Average Passenger Trip Length- Total passenger miles divided by passenger trips. 
Passenger Trips per VOMS - Number of passenger trips divided by vehicles operated in 
maximum service. 
Passenger Trips per Revenue Hour - Number of passenger trips divided by total revenue 
hours. 
Passenger Trips per Revenue Mile- Number of passenger trips divided by total revenue miles. 

Total Operating Expense - Total cost of operating the fixed route service, including 
administration, maintenance and operation expenses. 
Total Maintenance Expense - A subset of operating expenses that includes vehicle and non
vehicle maintenance expenses. 
Operating Expense per Capita- Operating expenses divided by the service area population. 
Operating Expense per Passenger Trip - Operating expenses divided by total per passenger 
trips. 
Operating Expense per Revenue Hour- Operating expenses divided by total revenue hours. 
Maintenance Expense per Vehicle Mile - Maintenance expenses divided by total vehicle 
miles. 

' ,.•' '.,. •,·· 

The fixed.: . ; ' ~e~iL.revie~ rt···, ·.lrinrsrs 

other sifiju~r transit systerps,Jn ..... ······· 
online ptbgram, which wc:fs·':JointiY '' 
(FOOT) and 1t~e. Lehman ce'nt§r for ·. n Research (LCTR) at Florida International 
University (FIUy,:~ap utilized t6,;~:~1ect potential peer systems using the methodology outlined in 
TCRP Report 141':+/\Method y for Performance Measurement and Peer Comparison in the 
Public Transportatio~<trtoustr 

,:,.,..;. ,,,, 

TCRP Report 141 was d~~~loped by Kittleson & Associates, Inc. with assistance from the 
Center for Urban Transportation Research (CUTR), Texas Transportation Institute (TTl), LCTR 
at FlU, and Nakanishi Research & Consulting. The peer selection methodology was programed 
into the FTIS online program along with corresponding 2006 American Community Survey 
(ACS) data when they were released. It has since been updated with 201 0 ACS data. Within 
the FTIS software, there is a tool that allows for the selection of peers on an agency-wide basis 
or on a specific mode basis. 

Performance Evaluation 
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The methodology used by the tool calculates a likeness score for each measure and then 
averages the likeness scores across all variables. Some of the variables include: 

• Urban Population 
Population Density 

• Population Growth Rate 
Vehicle Miles 

• Operating Budget 
Percent Low Income 

• Percent College Students 
Service Area Type (8 different types specified in th, 
Geographic Distance Between Potential Peers ~ 

In order to narrow down the potential peers, the.to~:i~o~4o peer~ ~il~:.~he lowest likeness scores 
(values closest to zero) were initially select~g:~:;;'For those peers, ah,~~dditional measure was 

::.: ... >:+~<:.:.·.> ··~,. ~.=:'.':.' ,, 

added to the analysis: Vehicles in Maximum S~~~ice (an NTD measure)~~,~rom the final list, the 
six systems with the closest likeness scores t0''GC>4ine wer~;~~elected as pe~r systems for the 
analysis. Those six peer systems ar~?Ji~ted in Tabl~~"3~: . ,(L~',';.·· ,. ' 

·'~ij~=::_:::\;;>.;i . ,:'"·'··\:;/'() 
f ·' .. {_:;;;..,: :-: • •• •• \ :~~:.~-~~'; •• 1:. 

'.'t::t i·"Ji~91.~ 3 •:;,':; 
Goline Fi~:~~ Ro'ul~JJ?,.~er Syst~I;J'l,~ 

Selected Peer Systems 

Bay County TPO (Pensacola, FL) 

Lake County BOCC (Tavares, FL) 

Johnson City Transit System (Johnson City, TN) 

Washington County Transit (Hagerstown, MD) 

Huntsville Public Transportation (Huntsville, AL) 

High Point Transit (High Point, NC) 

A fixed route trend analysis was also conducted using Goline's FY 2006 through FY 2010 NTD 
reports. Performance measures, including the percent change for each measure for the trend 
period, are grouped into categories and presented in tabular form (Tables 4 through 7). 

Trend Area and Peer Group Graphs 

Figures 1 through 27 in this evaluation illustrate the selected operational and financial 
measures. There are two types of graphs displayed: trend area graphs and peer group bar 

• 
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graphs. The trend area graphs show GoLine's trends for each performance measure during the 
five-year period. The percent change over the five-year period is shown at the top right of each 
trend area graph. The peer group graphs show GoLine's performance in relation to the peer 
systems selected for the most recent validated year of data (FY 201 0). The peer median of the 
entire group is displayed with a dark gray bar and a vertical black line. GoLine's values are 
shown with a light blue bar. All other systems are shown with gray bars. Figures 26 and 27 
present a graphical representation of GoLine as compared to its peer group in all measures 
(showing the minimum, median, and maximum values for each performance measure). 

Peer and Trend Tables 
~~:<:'.;~_y:?-·T:{:'. >+, 

Peer and trend tables show GoLine's values for e'aqfl peii,grl'l)ance measure for FY 2006 
through FY 2010 as well as the percent change.io'ye~the trer1~t;~~riod. They also show how 

~ ;,;·;_:>!;::. _:. ·;,.. "'''?·~·::::·~~>. 

Go Line's FY 2010 values compared to the peer:;;t:fl~dian for each megsl!l,r:e. 
,.k:··'··t~:;;;/·'· !··;,;r>?,k, 

;:,;; 

Operational Measures: Service Characteristi~~·x;:,), 
., • ,.·i. ;:.~ •. )s'; 

Service characteristic measures ar . · e1sis for rri~~Q:pf the other operational measures 
presented in the peer and trend analysi~, a 'Je,A. shows G¢4iJ1e's five-year trend and the peer 

·;::;:·.;·;. 

comparison for these measures. ., .. _.,,. ·. 

•· .. =··<;:;,,~::;., 

88 129 108 108 117 32.6% 91 28.2% 

737 615 615 670 -50.0% 1,638 -59.1% 

10.24 10.43 11.27 14.59 36.0% 15.72 -7.2% 

248 200 317 391 595 139.7% 418 42.2% 

244 193 297 366 564 131.3% 410 37.6% 

0.98 0.97 0.94 0.94 0.95 -3.5% 0.97 -2.1% 

23 19 28 32 39 70.1% 29 33.1% 

12.74 21.17 19.84 26.14 95.2% 25.30 

• 
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Service area population is usually calculated using a formula (area around % of a mile from 
service) specified by the National Transit Database (NTD). Many agencies do not update this 

figure on an annual basis and, therefore, it remains unchanged over the trend period. Goline, 
however, did report an adjusted service area population several times over the trend period 

representing an increase of approximately 33 percent. Although transit is typically more effective 

and efficient in denser areas, the decrease (50%) in Goline's service area density was related 
primarily to changes in the way service area size was reported (an increase from 66 square 

miles in 2006 to 175 miles in 2007 and subsequent years). Service area density had been 

reported based on the fixed route service area at the time )(§(SUS the entire area served by 
paratransit. The change also impacted the service area populi:\.fjoh reported in Table 4. 

<l'i'd,;·cf 

. '<,,:J;;ii 

Average speed is calculated by dividing the numb~r 6ti'tE:~ve~o~i'ljliles of service by the number 

of revenue hours of service. That number gene~~~~~~.~eflects the ~~''p.unt of roadway congestion, 

but may also reflect the amount of urban ver "diral service as w~lr~s,the number of regular 

routes versus limited stop or express routes .. ,. ;fix~.d route system that s~rv~~ less dense areas 

and provides a greater percentage of expres~,.,·:$$~yice wilti;have a high$~, average speed. 
:c.:.:. . ,.~:<~t'·':~~ .· <Y?t:r/~ ::·.- ,,r:,ii< 

Goline's trend was positive with an;jt:1~qr~ase in averag~Y:§l;}§ed of 36 percent with the majority of 

the change occurring in fiscal year 2o1.p:LG'(;l.Line was sli'ShtiY;.?elow (7.2%) the peer median. 

Revenue miles of service is a measure that gives an indication of the level of service provided 

by a transit system. Goline's revenue miles of service increased approximately 131 percent 
over the trend period, ranking third among its peers. The significant increase is very positive for 

Performance Evaluation 
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Indian River County, particularly since it was accompanied by a corresponding increase 
{114.8%) in passenger trips as displayed in Table 6 (Page 15). 

Figure 2 
Revenue Miles (in thousands) 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

: .. ~·'::-.. "·\'::.{·,~.:~-.. ,:.~ .. ·' :> ·.. . :> . 
The ratio of revenue .;rnfre$T•to:.vehicle rT1il~s meas.ure$ 'the n of "deadhead" miles an 

-~'.'. i: , ';~~:. : : · · ~ · :;_\: :, . . .: .. ·:t ·:. . :r;; ... ~::··-'·~::i,.. · ··=~ ..... :.:.'.i.~:: ·, 

agency has. Deadhe~ti miles are?.,defined a.srni!.~:S.that 'the;.Ql.lS operates without passengers 
onboard (to and from'the:garage)::.QpLine's rati!;Fdropped 3 percent (from 0.98 to 0.95) over the 
trend period which is onth~·lpw •. ' peer rneqian. 

• 
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Revenue hours of service is another measure of the amount of service provided. Goline's 
revenue hours of service increased 70 percent over the trend period. Goline ranked second 
among its peers for this measure, and 33 percent higher than the peer median, both positive 
indicators in terms of community access to transit. 

Figure 4 
Revenue Hours (in thousands) 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

''"' "l 

Operational Measures,; '(ehicle l.;ftflization 
Y=,:·: !> 
. :;; '': ·:···:=; ' ' . •"'"\!'·""~ . • f. I··:. . 

Vehicle utili~~ti<)@,;f,lleasure,s' f:7llect::<>tr,clf'l$it vehi.cle usage, performance, and other data 
associg,ted, .. ¥-'itfl''t'fie'V~bi;gJes intQ.~ system.'l'fal;)le _Sshows Goline's five-year trend and the peer 
compafi~~h for these ;iiefifiwes.' · ·.,,,, ··' .,". '' 

·: ·r·. .!;,. 
~-:::·:·.=:+;·· ~-~~( ··"':+ 

i(''' 

•;:1:, ·,,;·.,, 
.... ,. 
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Table 5 
Peer & Trend - Goline Vehicle Utilization Measures 

9 10 11 11 14 55.6% 11.5 21.7% 

50.0% 63.6% 63.6% 50.0% 12.5% 70.3% -28.9% 

19,307 26,996 33,270 40,309 48.7% 48,365 -16.7% 

1.70 1.48 1.35 1.64 1.48 -12.8% 1.16 27.8% 

7.47 7.96 5.53 6.11 7.87 5.4% 5.35 47.0% 

244 193 33 18 30 -87.8% 5.91 402.4% 

5.38 3.20 3.94 4.94 3.38 -37.2% 4.45 -24.0% 

Figures 5, 6, and 7 depictthe peer and';irend data~fQ~... . . ·. .· ..... ble and vehicles operated 
in maximum service (VQ~S);- , Both me~~yres h,a~~+:ri~ep. steagily over the five-year trend 
period, with vehicl~~ .~viailable .. increasing: .. ,62 ;J;)'~:i6~nt. ~hq; YOMS increasing 56 percent. 
Increases in these rhe!i).s~res are.bpnsistent V!{it~·t:lhe incre~~efd levels of service provided by 
Goline during the trelid:tpJ;:~riod.yi?;qJ..ine rank:E:!.~'':third and above the peer median for total 

, ·):;~, :c:~·· ::! · ~., .. ,,(::,,; .. "~f·.-:~ ·:" · ~,··:fr.·: :: 
vehicles .. · ... ···· .. · ··· •.. . ure 6)·~n ·· .$f·ar:t9C\b,gve the,peer median in VOMS (Figure 7). 

~.;<:o/: ''" 
~·~~~: ).:,:t' 

•·\::·\·?·''?'<, 
(•'._t'•'\ . <:',... Fig~f~ .. 5 

...... ~"''·"''" and\@perated in Maximum Service (VOMS) 
Nationai'Transit Database 2006-201 0 

---------------------------------~~----------------~-e_m_on_m_a_n_ce_e_v._~_u_at_w __ n 
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Figure 6 
Total Vehicles 

Figure 7 
VOMS 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

'{ t 

Spare ratio measures the difference'·6~tWe~ntt)e numbsf:"1$t~yehicles available and the number 
of vehicles operated in maximum se · 'Cii~t' , by thetJi~.rrber of vehicles in maximum 

service. Low spare rat!Q.~;·!].~Y indicat •::~p()tentia .:ls~HE?.~ in 't~[~~ of the ability to schedule 
preventative mainten9r:(qg:'«:i'rid :{:l::.)~ck of veh,iple p~pl3:citY:,tQ:.{~spohd to increased demand for 
service, while high s~~r~ ratios''fijg~ indicate;•~nJo·eHficient ·usei'bf capital. Based on 201 o NTD 
data, the average spar~"'mtio for:~@encies witH,~between' 10 and 30 vehicles was 43 percent. 
The medianotGqLine's ~~s·~ .. ~rq~~nwas. big her (lipproximately 75 percent). In 201 o, GoLine's 
so perc~nfspare.r~tio:r\1\fas vJ'ithh)an.acceptabt~.range. 

' . . •• . ~ • . ;j .. ;~ . .. ;, .; •.. :.·. • • ; ..... ;: .• -~ .. :.: 

.. ;~;;.·.;:,:::?:::\·} 
·:.·:.<.: :·,:-

';}/{~~(;( 
Figure 8 
pare Ratio 
ran sit Database 2006-201 0 
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Revenue miles per vehicles operated in maximum service is a measure showing the degree of 
utilization of each vehicle in service. Figure 9 shows that Goline's revenue miles per vehicles 
operated in maximum service increased 49 percent over the trend period. Despite the positive 
increase, Goline did not compare favorably to four of the six peer systems. 

Figure 9 
Revenue Miles Per VOMS (in thousands) 
Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

·a measure of how efficient an 
a slightly negative trend (13 percent) in this 

nt compared to the peer systems. 

• 
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Vehicle miles per gallon measures the fuel efficiency of the agency's vehicles. There is a 

correlation between this measure and average speed, since vehicles typically get better mileage 

when not in stop and go traffic. More dense service areas with a greater frequency of stops will 

likely have lower measures. GoLine increased its vehicle miles per gallon efficiency (from 7.5 to 

7.9) over the trend period, and compared favorably to the peer systems. 

Figure 11 

Vehicle Miles per Gallon 
Source: National Transit Database ~'N''~~'*~1,v 

'r,, 

thaHfuay provide insight into the overall condition 
· · ... · .. · .... break down while in service. Go Line had an 

. ·· 2007 when only one failure was reported in 
rAI"Hv~.~~ wh~~;petween 9 and 20 failures were reported. At a rate of 

na•·••'"'a·' '. !{ailures;N3oLine compares favorably to the peer systems and 
T..,...,,,.n,..ar median:;;df 5,911 revenue miles between failures in FY 2010. 

• 
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Figure 12 
Revenue Miles between Failures (in thousands) 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

The average age of Goline's fleet Jr~dt~,a~'~p 37 perce :•·•. the trend period from 5.38 years 
to 3.38 years, which is a positive trendY~t:tt With;~typunger · ···· ··.. .. should be a corresponding 
decrease in revenue m n failti(e~. G~cf~~:s gverag~ of fleet ranked right in the 
middle of its peers below th~:peer.rn~~~Ii~'· 

Figuf~.;13 
Ag~,:·9t Fleet 

latil:malli:[):aq~3it Database 2006-201 o 
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Operational Measures: Service Utilization and Productivity 

These performance measures look at how passengers use the service that is provided, as well 

as the productivity or effectiveness of those services. Table 6 shows Goline's five-year trend 

and the peer comparison for those measures. 

Table 6 
Peer & Trend - Goline Service Utilization and Productivity Measures 

236 1,190 1,714 2,715 2,899 1127.9% i 1,790 62.0% 

0.72 4.31 4.49 4.57 4.10 471.6% 4.34 -5.4% 

36.6 27.6 34.7 54.0 50.5 38.1% 46.6 8.4% i 

14.64 13.41 18.30 18.29 26.3% 16.31 12.1% 

1.35 1.43 1.29 1.62 1.25 -7.1% 1.04 20.7%: 

Ridership on Goline:s"fixed ;~i1leservice iiwrea~~d sig~iflbg.ntly (approximately 115 percent) 
Y::.·::y>_ '-··~<·:·=?:. ;).~:.=,:.~.:,,_:.\.· 

over the trend period; with annual ,increases bE)t'Neen FY 2007 and FY 201 0. Go line ranked 

third among . peers in ridem:;hip,behi!ild only High·Point, NC and Bay County Transit and 51.6 
:. l_, ... ·.·!: ?·<: ,_,·,··: .. ! ···.~y.· .\:-.. \:":····· 

ao()Ve,:rnle neer media)i,J.fuoth positive .r:neaswr;es. 

... ...... ~i~Gf~'~,~· 
, 'i' ',.:Passeng;~ Trips 

"'Y..·:;+is:. 

: Natiol;l}ll:,J'ransit Database 2006-201 0 
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The number of passenger miles is a NTD measure that multiplies the number of passenger trips 
by the average passenger trip length to estimate the total number of passenger miles traveled. 
Passenger miles verses total passengers more accurately portray actual utilization of the bus 
system since a system could have a high volume of short passenger trips while the bus is empty 
for a majority of its trip. An extremely positive measure, Goline's passenger miles increased 
more than tenfold over the trend period. Goline ranked second in passenger miles among the 
peer systems, trailing only Bay County Transit. 

Figure 15 
Passenger Miles 

Source: National Transit uaL,aua"'"'£~ 

percent over the trend period (increasing 
m~thodology used to calculate the average 

lted in a significantly understated number, 
, ·' .· with the 2007 report. Even with the 2006 anomaly, 

av~r~g'~~ctrip length which may be due in part to better service 
.''In FY 2010, Goline's average passenger trip length 

4.34 miles. 

• 
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Figure 16 
Average Passenger Trip Length 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

Three measures that reflect the prqgt;tq!ivity of a system are: er trips per 
vehicle operated in maximum servide;i::~~~~~nger .... ·.revenue hour, and passenger trips 
per revenue mile. The peer and trend'tl,~ta'fbr,9p,Pne are s_n:g~n in the next set of Figures (17 
through 19). Both passen~~~r trips per Y:~t;J,icles''orte ted in ;tn~~irnum service and passenger 
trips per revenue hOU{:ffiPIT~. · . , while p~~§leng .. . .:~;:p~r rev$Jiiue mile slightly decreased. 

_ _,:,\:,_ ,--"_;·:;"' ·· . . · .. ; ',i.,·.:F:. , --~ti =-")J.;.,. 

Goline was above tMaxpeer edia~;~ for all thr~~."' sures~':r;~hking either third or fourth among 
l
'ts peers. . ;;.; ' <' 1 ',:/:e. .. ', .. :.'.: · ..... \·· 

. ;:.j~ : .. ·:.;., .. , . 

= 1,:· "C; >F 
, \>~c . 

f~J~~~~~e'';;1 "!:: 
nger'Ttips Per VOMS 
al Transifbatabase 2006-2010 
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Figure 18 
Passenger Trips Per Revenue Hour 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

Financial Performance Measures 

The financial performance measures include expense measures as well as financial efficiency 
and effectiveness measures. Table 7 shows Goline's five-year trend and the peer comparison 
for these measures. 

• 
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Table 7 
Peer & Trend - Financial Measures 

$683 $1,049 $1,154 $1,283 51.8% $1,742 -26.4% 

$65 $122 $144 $208 $232 253.8% $360 -35.7% 

$5.29 $9.74 $10.73 $10.94 14.4% $22.79 -52.0% 

$2.47 $2.75 $1.94 $1.81 -29.3% $3.55 -49.1% . 

$36.18 $36.84 $35.53 $33.18 -10.8% $56.84 -41.6% 

$0.61 . $0.45 $0.53 $0.39 47.6% $0.75 -47.7% 

.·· , ,i'"'+;;J,:, ".>fL .. 
Figure 20 shows that GoLine's operatiQ~ expen~.~§r,ipcreaseg';,~2 percent over the five-year 
trend period, which is. · . with the{iflpreas~ .··· ~V~Isof ~~ryice provided. Even with the 
large increase, Go . . amdhgJh, .. §r 'a'r16tJp;; .. a,nd 26.4 percent below the peer 

':' ';:<i."'; ':f' "''~'"~ ,,. )( .• ' 

median which are 

: . ': .· ,. ;~'·i; :., .·<.o , >J.!i;\· ~":. 

• • " <figure' ~0 
~-·,~-·ing E~p~o:~:~Ogthousands $) 

Translf-E>atabase 2006-201 0 

------------------------------~~~----------------Pe_rn_o_rm_a_n_~_e_v._~_u_at_w __ n 
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As a subset of total operating expenses, Goline's maintenance expenses increased 254 
percent. With an increase of approximately 140 percent in vehicle miles of service, an increase 

in maintenance expenses is expected. Even with the maintenance expense increases, Goline 
still compared favorably to the peer systems at 35.7 percent below the peer median. 

measures. C 

percent lower. 

Figure 21 
Maintenance Expense (in thousands $) 
Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

the overall operating expense and other 

ncy. The measures include operating 
hour. Figures 22 through 24 display 

In terms of financial efficiency measures, 

in two of the three measures, with the lone 
capita. The peer graphics in those figures show the 

. bottom. Goline ranked first by a sizeable margin in all three 
median, Goline's expense ratios were approximately 50 

---------------------------------~r-----------------~-e_m_o_rm_a_n_ce_~_v._~_u_at_w __ n 
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Figure 22 
Operating Expense per Capita 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-201 0 
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Figure 24 
Operating Expense Per Revenue Hour 
Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

ii·,~_·,:.·.· :. ""j• ,;~::.::_~:;\':·~~:.!;;,:/.:::) . 
Maintenance expense per vehicle mjJ~ri$another measur:~fhat can indicate the overall health of 

the vehicle fleet. If this measure is tii~~,''ii'rn~y;mean th'~fih~ condition of the vehicles is poor 

and more maintenance is required. it\it.is ldWt[t~~r the 'fl~,~t is in overall good condition. 

mile. 

vehide,.~ile in9r~~§~~ 4a·&~grcent over the trend period. 

~..,,..Li',..,, above'th~;8~~~~r;;iih"&Xfu~intenance expense of $0.39 per 

'.7 perce~t':i~~~r than th~ ·peer median of $0.75 per vehicle 
';.> 

\'\" 

:~;.·:;)<" ~;~· 

Fig'Ur~ 2s 
nte!na1r~.ce Expense per Vehicle Mile 

Transit Database 2006-2010 
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Peer Summary 

Figure 26 shows a summary of how GoLine's values for the operational measures compare to 
the peer group minimum, maximum and median. For a majority of the measures, GoLine is 
close to the peer group maximum for the positive measures. Only a few measures fall below the 
peer group median, including average age of fleet which is seen as a positive (younger fleet). 

Figure 26 

···-·---·-------·--·~!!!..~~~y~is -:_~yera!io~~~-easur~~, .. F~-.~~-------·----···------
250% ~~--~--~-~--~-------~-~~-----y--~~~--~--~ 

200% 4--t----+' 

150% 

-Peer Max 

!I IR 

-Median 

-Peer Min 

,,:: ·. :·z:~<., 

'" 

Figure 27 shows a sum"Hl~~~f~f;·ff~w Go Line's values for the financial measures compared to the 
peer group minimum, maxliTfum, and median. GoLine was below the peer median for every 
financial measure and ranked the lowest in every measure. In most cases, a low ranking is 
preferable. A lower operating expense per revenue hour, for example, reflects more cost 
effective service. 
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Figure 27 
Peer Analysis- Financial Measures, FY 2010 

........................ ~~:= ....... ~ ...... ~ ...... ;. .. -.-ti!li:--+--~:t~~?o' -..j'~~ ...... JUit~Ja~\~ .... ~ ..... ~o.-.-m . -Peer Max 

[lj IR 
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PART TWO: DEMAND RESPONSE TRANSIT SERVICE 

A trend analysis was conducted using Community Coach's FY 2006 through FY 2010 NTD 
reports. Performance measures, including the percent change for each measure for the trend 
period, are grouped into categories and presented in tabular form (Tables 8 through 11 ). 

A peer review similar to the one conducted for GoLine fixed route service was also completed 
for Community Coach. The FTIS software was utilized to sei.E)ct six peer systems, but due to 

wide variations in demand response service measures, CQQ1~Unity Coach is compared to the 
peer median versus individual systems. >'' · · ' 

Figures in this evaluation illustrate the selected OJilerational a~dff.in~ncial measures. The trend 
area graphs show Community Coach's trend$:·(oi each perform~M¢'Et, measure. The percent 
change over the period is shown at the top rig~t;Bteach graph. Figur;sL49,~nd 50 (at the end of 
this chapter) present a graphical representatid'n"cpf Comm4?Ity Coach born~ared to the peer 
group in all measures (showing ti:Je minimum, :me,dip,t\;; iand maximurl1',,values for each 

T. ·.:. ~:. 

performance measure). 

Peer and Trend Tables 

Peer and trend tablesois'play B~~!Jlunity co&ch;~,yijfl.l~s'fdtLe.p,,ch performance measure for FY 
2006 through FY 201'0,';:\~.well as·tfie percent qt"t~hge over the;trend period. They also show the 
peer median for each me1as.ure and' how Comrnti@ity Coach's FY 2010 values compare to the 

k=: -~;.. ..·:-..... ·:~·r·. ::/ .. :;; }. 

peer medi.'iirl~ '•·• ~~, ·:2 l·> , '·':t···, 
.{'' '··<::l:, 

·; <;. 

Operatr !JJl/ Measures;·s~br.tce ChJracteristics 
'· . :. . :;; . ' _i- : ·~ : . • •• ;, ·~''· ,.. ~ 

Service ch~~ii¢teristic measu~e$ .. refer tcr measures that comprise the basic data of the transit 
system and frorrtJJijhich other rJ-l:~.p,sures can be derived. Table 8 shows Community Coach's 

five-year trend fortfi~;.~electe,Si~~,ervice characteristic measures and the peer comparison for 
those measures. Thosl3,)~yp,Jt1afi~hs are described following the table. 

<2>r<~tr~· ·:XG<·····:··i· 
~s ;I:/.~?~.·> j, 

• 
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Table 8 
Peer & Trend - Community Coach Service Characteristic Measures 

590 362 469 463 462 ·-21.6% 433 6.7% 

0.96 0.94 0.95 0.95 0.96 0.3% 0.83 15.1% 

51 29 40 36 36 -30.7% 31 13.4% 

'; .·,,~··:. .· .. 

. .:<:k·· :i,.f•···· ·. ··•··· ... ,',,:; 
Revenue miles of service gives an indication oftQE:fl.evel of serviceprovided by a transit system. 

:~::> '. :;., ~ ., '·:'.=·-:'1:;~~:·::· 

As shown in Table 8, Community Coach's rev$nt,1e miles of service deC:t~gsed approximately 22 
percent over the trend period, but Communlty.,;c;;pach still provided ~Sptgximately 7 percent 
more service than the peer median. .. "' .~ .. ': . ''·;·, 

The ratio of revenue miles to vehicle miles measures deadhead miles (miles that the bus 
operates without passengers onboard). After a low in FY 2007, Community Coach's revenue 
miles per vehicle miles ratio increased in subsequent years to end the five year period up less 
than one percent. Compared to its peers, Community Coach is more efficient, with a 15 percent 
higher revenue mile to vehicle mile ratio. 

Performance Evaluation 
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Figure 29 
Revenue Miles I Vehicle Miles 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-201 0 

Revenue hours of service is an irl · ator of the service provided' by the transit 
agency. Community Coach's reveri · :UJ;:~ of se .. 31 percent over the trend 
period. Most of that decrease occurt&d ;i:~~';tqe,Jirst y~' . , the trend period. Despite the 
decrease, Goline provides 13 percent niore reVe'hu'e:hours ';·the median of the peer group. 

' '!,,,.·· 
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Operational Measures: Vehicle Utilization 

Vehicle utilization measures reflect transit vehicle usage, performance, and other vehicle related 
data. Table 9 shows Community Coach's five-year trend and the peer comparison for those 
measures. 

Table 9 
Peer & Trend - Community Coach Vehicle Utilization Measures 

33 25 25 25 25 -24.2% 17 51.5% 

36.0% 28.0% 28.0% 28.0% 2.7% 27.5% 1.7% 

17.9 14.5 18.7 18.5 18.5 3.5% 27.3 -32.3% 

10.9 9.4 8.0 8.8 8.7 -19.8% 7.5 16.6% 

295 362 78 19 20 -93.2% 9 127.1% 

4.41 24.6% 4.02 9.8% 

-" .:-: ::. . . ·. J_)!=:~;.,. . < ::\:;;_i:v·:: ·: .. ·. -. -~_,_:f\:. 
Figure 31 .. c;l~pjcts]ttl~ trerii:l:.::tti~tg for"V!3~)GII3S a~.~il?ble and vehicles operated in maximum 

:, ,· .. _,;.},···. :--'·''"' '.:': :.>!.:' -'=· ·=u .. +:i::o:·< ··<1:=·<~=:_-·~:··.. ·~· .. :<.~ 
servicE! .(J'.QMS). Bot f?asure~:fc;lropped apptp~lrllately 24 percent, with the largest decrease 

;•;,\ i' Y: •: •hi.> "":,,;«.: .. ·;,,~h n,".h?t''""'~:;" 

in the 'fir$~··Lyear of the tr < • erioa.'''i'~yen with the decrease, Community Coach operated 56.1 
percent ni'6~~ yehicles and~s ''·"perc~~t'rnore VOMS than the peer median. 

'C!f!f"'. ~ ·, .. \(·Ji~f~·~: ';:~!/'\'\'~. 
,.,., 

·":,;:._c:·" 
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Figure 31 
Vehicles Available and Operated in Maximum Service (VOMS) 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

Spare ratio measures the differenc~~~~tW~,en the n~~be:hof vehicles available and the number 
of vehicles operated in maximum se,;rvfbe(~,'t~iyjped b/ t~~;::,pumber of vehicles operated in 
maximum service. A low spare ratio canip1ake th~:jf~,bedulirt'gi:~t:rnaintenance activities difficult 
and may limit an agen , to respoJidto in9t~~sgd ~ervide'"cjemand, while a high spare 
ratio may indicate of caplt~~;~q~Jpfiiient:'3'Fff~~,;~pare ratio for Community Coach 
increased 3 pe and.,'i~b28 percent,:)fs similar to the peer median for 
that measure. 

'.::·>"', 

:;:~~~;uw 3z;; 
Sp~r$i~atio 
Transit Database 2006-2010 
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Revenue miles per vehicle in maximum service indicates the degree of utilization of each 
vehicle in service. Figure 33 shows that Community Coach's revenue miles per vehicle in 
maximum service increased 3 percent over the trend period. Despite the increase, Community 
Coach did not compare favorably to the peer systems (32.3 percent below the peer median). 

Figure 33 
Revenue Miles Per VOMS (in thousands) 
Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

Vehicle miles per g~Uon mea~ ·· agency's vehicles. Community 
<,::~-. \·+, 

Coach's vehicle miles pe[';gallon cjeqreased fro··· .. 0.9 to 8. 7 over the trend period, but the fleet 
·t=r r· '\ ... . /!-s ... ~;·:·;~':_--:;.·;.r:, .. 

thanth~;P~er'm~d,i,9n of 7. 

• 
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Figure 34 
Vehicle Miles per Gallon 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-201 0 

: ,, '-~ 

::·/':V::>. 

Revenue miles between failures is a o.•···ro\/O.IrQIL•· .... nrvlitinn of th·~·;tleet. It measures 
""mi'c 

how often vehicles break down whll ervice. 
',,., <-·>]%· 

failures from FY 2006 and FY 2007, ·J . n"'Q'~ty,one or ures were reported each year, to 
the following three years when betwe'§n 6. '•an<:l: .. ~,Q .tailu reported. Even with the 

increase in failures, Cofl1rnYnity Coach: ~t a rat~;·()f~o,,099 · .. ue miles between failures, 
compared favorably to.~th~ pe~rrn~dian of B'i852 reyenu~niil.es between failures in FY 201 o. 
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The average age of the Community Coach fleet increased 25 percent, from 3.54 years to 4.41 
years, over the trend period, and was slightly higher than the peer median of 4.02 years. 

Figure 36 
Average Age of Fleet 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

' 'c: ";J•n 

• "::-:=· :r:::)).S:_:-· •.. ·.,.. • • ~ .>·\t: . '~··: n>·i;, >·· ·, • • 
Operattonal Measur~§,t'SJ~rvtqe, Uttltzatton,and Pt;oaucttvJty 

Operational measur~~{''~re 
effectiveness. Table 1 o::shows 

579 

6.1 

1.85 

0.16 

633 

11.7 

of.<"'~.~c~~ij~:~er :tiH~ation, service productivity and 
Coadb\9 five-year trend and the peer comparison for 
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Table 10 
ce Utilization and Productivity Measures 

855 411 406 -29.9% 713 -43.1% 

12.7 8.1 8.2 34.3% 7.9 4.2% 

2,173 2,699 2,031 1,978 -31.1% 4,540 -56.4% 

1.85 1.69 1.42 1.39 -24.8% 2.41 -42.4% 

0.15 0.14 0.11 0.11 -33.5% 0.20 -47.2% 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Measured in passenger trips, ridership on Community Coach decreased approximately 48 
percent over the trend period. Community Coach ridership was 38.9 percent below the peer 
median. One potential reason for ridership decline could be greater access to Goline. That 
could be viewed as a positive trend, since the operating cost per passenger trip on Goline was 
$1.81, versus Community Coach's cost of $31.39 in 2010. The decline could also be the result 
of capacity constraints related to vehicle availability. 

Figure 37 
Passenger Trips . 3 ..... 

Source: National Transit Database £.U,Ju~,ou 

The numb~f:cN p~§setlger mHes::i~ an N~O'rneas6~a that multiplies the number of passenger 
:~,~··:: . .. : ·,.' ···~·''.< ":!i<:.· <:' :··( ·,, L <·:·. :>r: 

trips b .e average pa~s~~ger tr;iJ?,Jength to ·estimate the total number of passenger miles 
traveleci:·ea.ssenger miles v~rses tdlif~passengers more accurately portray actual utilization of 
the system.·~~s,,,l)hown in Figu;~e)8, pas~,e,mger miles did not decrease as much as passenger 
trips, but still a'eq~~ased 30 p·efGf?nt over the trend period. Similar to the previous measure, 
Community Coactk~g$ substari~.~!IY below (43 percent) the peer median for this measure. 

,~··.· .. '. . •. /±{.-:.~;,~¥~':". "< ~->.· .. :.,: .. · .. ';'· "· ' " ,..-:·;~: .. :.~.1 ~.~; . 
<E· j··i:· ~"\i{,;;···;··:" 

. ~,· . >:;;~ . ';< 
''· \; •• "C' ;~· 

------------------------------~~ .... ._ ________________ ~_e_m_~nn __ an_c_e_E_~_w_a_uo_n_ 



INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Figure 38 
Passenger Miles 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

,,,, ;'.': ·~. n>~, 

Although Community Coach's avef;~g~'''Hassenger ·" has declined ~i~nificantly since 
2008, there was an overall increa~~:',;o.hi$4 . percent . . the trend period. In FY 2010, 
Community Coach's average passeng·~~;trip'lef,lgthof 8.2 hili~& was 4 percent higher than the 
peer median. ·' .. ..,,. .. '''j,;< .. 

Three measures that reflect the productivity of a system are passenger trips per vehicle 
operated in maximum service, passenger trips per revenue hour, and passenger trips per 
revenue mile. The peer and trend data for Community Coach are shown in the next set of 
Figures (40 through 42). All three measures showed substantial declines over the trend period 

----------------------------~--~------------------Pe_m_o_nn_a_n_~_e_~_~_u_at_w __ n 



INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

(31, 25, and 33, percent respectively). The values were between 40 - 60 percent below the 
peer medians for those measures. 

Figure 40 
Passenger Trips Per VOMS 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

• 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Figure 42 
Passenger Trips Per Revenue Mile 

Source: National Transit Database 2006-2012 

Financial Performance Measure 

$1,041 $1,475 $1,387 $1,553 -1.0% 

$262 $182 $216 $255 $293 11.8% 

$8.07 $13.70 $12.90 $13.24 -25.4% 

$19.16 $21.86 $27.32 $31.30 89.7% 

$35.44 $37.03 $38.79 $43.64 42.7% 

$0.47 $0.44 $0.52 $0.61 43.0% 

$1,416 

$203 

$18.30 

$20.40 

$52.18 

$0.42 

9.6% 

44.4% 

-27.6% 

53.9% 

-16.4% 

44.8% 

• 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Figure 43 shows that Community Coach's operating expenses decreased one percent over the 

five-year trend period, although there were significant declines in the overall levels of service 

provided. A decrease occurred in FY 2007, but since that time operating expenses trended 
higher through 2010. At 10 percent higher than the peer median, Community Coach does not 

compare favorably in this measure given the lower levels of service provided. 

Figure 43 
Operating Expense (in thousands $) 

Source: National Transit Database 10 

As a subset of total oper~fing r":ALJ.C""'"'"' Comml.rqjty Coach's maintenance expenses increased 

12 percent;ai1o'wer,~44 percEmflt') 1"''"''·"'v·'+1
"'"'•"•' ,'.,the peer,median for this measure. 

,~·r:·· 

•";>+,; .. 

,,.:.,.,-., 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Figure 44 
Maintenance Expense (in thousands $) 
Source: National Transit Database 2006-201 0 

The first set of financial efficie 
performance measures to create . measures include operating 
expenses per capita, perps,~senger tri ···· ures 45 through 47 display 
Community Coach's tre.9~:a~t~·'tqr those ,, ..... experienced a decline in 
operating expense p~f::¢'apita, 't)\J~j!had largein··.··i.Gre~ase~s in two measures. Compared to 
the peer systems, the!:qpmmunity:,:;:is spendi roximately 28 percent less per capita for 
paratransit ser:yices, ancf R?es .,;~ob•po,rnpare with a cost per passenger trip of 
approximatei~!&4P~JC€lnt aobv~.;.tne! p~er:m€ldian. . 

<~·,v: ,,, · ·· · Fi!~·~·~~·.45. 
' ' ' ~~~- " 

·.;:;~. Expense per Capita 
''( ,,,..., Transit Database 2006-2010 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Figure 46 
Operating Expense per Passenger Trip 
Source: National Transit Database 2006-201 0 

Maintenance expense per vehicle mile is another measure that can indicate the overall 

condition of the fleet. If that measure is high, it may mean that the condition of the vehicles is 

poor. Community Coach's maintenance expense per vehicle mile increased 43 percent over the 

trend period and was 45 percent above the peer median for that measure. 

• 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Peer Summary 

Figure 48 
Maintenance Expense per Vehicle Mile 
Source: National Transit Database 2006-2010 

' \£::: 

Figure 49 shows a sumr11ar¥. of how c6riirnunit~~C(j,a9!~:s v;ifi~~~·Jpr the operational measures 
compared to the peer gidyp"mlhimum, maximum, apd1;rn~~ian. Community Coach was closer to 

..:· "": .•. ::.: _:, ',y '.'. . . ·-~:\-:(.{~" ';~.:;>:-~ :·. ·' :.(:;{-~'·-~:·:}' , .. ,.; ?~/"'" .~:·~;. ': 
the peer minimum ton more mea'sure,s than it\&aS,)fgthe peer.r:naximum. 

< }"··>;·;l,..'' 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
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Figure 49 
Peer Analysis- Operational Measures, FY 2010 

-Peer Max 

!iii IR 

-Median 

-Peer Min 

Figure 50 shows a s~!'lrjjli;},]jl:,how Co~ll!unit~.t~~~.\J:,:~:~aiJ~d"tor the financial measures 
compared to the pef?6[group mfnftD!Jm, ma~rrnunf~;,.ta~d m~aia::b; Community Coach was above 
the peer median for fbur:qt the fina~cial measur~§. In most ca;es a lower value is preferable. A 
lower operating expense p~rrevenO~'bour, for e~~mple, reflects more cost effective service . 

. ·.·s~· i· ;· .. 'T:-;::.·>;;· ./ >:;-.:.~::r - ;r·:~>:.: ·;·:;:::j·.~· :.,. 
,,;'.': 1,·>·:_;·/ 
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INDIAN RIVER COUNTY TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Figure 50 
Peer Analysis - Financial Measures, FY 201 0 
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TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY, FLORIDA 

MEMORANDUM 

Members of the Indian River County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

Robert M. Keating, AICP /Lw1~ 
Community Development Director 

Phillip J. Matson, AICPP fV\ 
MPO Staff Director 

April 30, 2013 

Consideration of Presentation by Senior Resource Association (SRA) and County Staff 
on Goline and Community Coach Operating Budget 

It is requested that the information presented herein be given formal consideration by the Indian River 
County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) at the meeting of May 8, 2013. 

DESCRIPTION; CONDITIONS & ANALYSIS 

On April 10, 2013, the Indian River County MPO voted to recommend that the Senior Resource 
Association (SRA), the County's longtime Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) for 
Transportation Disadvantaged Services, be retained as the CTC for a five-year period. In addition to its 
role as the CTC for Indian River County, SRA is also the operator of the County's public transportation 
system, which consists of the Goline fixed-route system and the Community Coach door-to-door 
service. 

While approving staff's recommendation, the MPO also requested that the County and SRA return in the 
near future to provide the MPO and its advisory committees with a detailed cost and operational update 
of the County's public transportation system. 

Attached to this staff report is a summary of the SRA's budget for transportation operations over the 
last three years. That budget summary was developed by the SRA based upon input from the County's 
Office of Management and Budget. Included in the attached overview is a revenue summary by funding 
category and a line-item detail of operating expenses. Also attached is a copy of SRA's audited financial 
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 

On May 8, 2013, SRA and County staff will provide an update for the MPO. During that presentation, 
staff will provide additional detail and answer questions pertaining to Goline and Community Coach 
operations. Staff will also provide information regarding the projected financial impact of alternative 
organizational structures (such as County provision of transit services) and will compare SRA expenses to 
comparable transit systems and enterprises in the region. 

F:\Community Development\Users\MPO\Meetings\MP0\2013\5-8-13\SRA Update Staff Report.doc 1 



RECOMMENDATION 

This is an informational item only. No action is required. 

1. Senior Resource Association Income Statement 
2. Senior Resource Association Audited Financial Statement 

F:\Community Development\Users\MPO\Meetings\MP0\2013\5-8-13\SRA Update Staff Report.doc 2 



I 

Transit· Goline & Community Coach 

Revenue 

Revenue· Operating 

Federal Grants 

State Grants 

Local City/County Grants 

Client Co-Pay/Donations 

Private Pay Services 

Contributions 

Advertising Sales 

Operating Revenue 

Realized Gain/Loss 

Other Income 

Total Revenue- Operating 

Revenue - Capital 

Federal Grants- Capital 

State· Capital 

Total Revenue- Capital 

Total Revenue 

Expenses 

Expenses- Operating 

Salaries & Wages 

Temporary Labor 

Health Insurance 

Retirement 

Payroll Taxes 

Worker Compensation 

Vehicle Allowance 

Employee Screening 

Travel 

Staff Development 

Volunteer Development 

Community Outreach 

Program Activities/Supplies 

Program Client Services 

Fuel 

Vehicle Maintenance 

Vehicle Registration 

Insurance - Vehicle 

Insurance - General/Liability 

Professional Fees 

Occupancy (Building & Grounds) 

Utilities 

Telephone/Communications 

Senior Resource Association 
Income Statement 

Fiscal YTD 
6/30/2011 

$1,267,049 

$1,193,835 

$556,049 

$62,406 

$3,220 

$18,248 

$89,261 

$8,475 

$5,000 

$395 

$3,203,939 

$321,876 

$2,217 

$324,093 

$3,528,031 

$1,543,064 

$15,596 

$46,932 

$16,135 

$I45,90I 

$47,I66 

$4,373 

$6,3I6 

$I I,9I I 

$I2,748 

$74 

$I,928 

$I5,I84 

$37,551 

$508,590 

$267,60I 

$I,097 

$24I,258 

$28,366 

$57,746 

$28,704 

$I9,107 

$I 8,366 

Fiscal YTD 
6/30/2012 

$I,279,225 

$I,33I,2I9 

$668,06I 

$57,858 

$2,7I8 

$I 1,479 

$48,973 

$I4,470 

($87,469) 

$0 

$3,326,533 

$332,806 

$0 

$332,806 

$3,659,339 

$I,53 I,348 

$38,612 

$44,9I I 

$I2,505 

$I44,227 

$62,425 

$3,494 

$5,I37 

$7,444 

$I2,782 

$I2 

$5,295 

$9,72I 

$I4,445 

$579,202 

$368,935 

$8I6 

$22I,474 

$28,429 

$I24,758 

$47,996 

$24,099 

$23,568 

Budget 
Fiscal Year 
2012-2013 

$I,257,842 

$I,290,615 

$694,7I7 

$59,900 

$3,000 

$200 

$80,000 

$12,553 

$0 

$0 

$3,398,827 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$3,398,827 

$I,689,205 

$5,IOO 

$30,333 

$8,95I 

$I50,246 

$62,763 

$2,064 

$5,586 

$9,600 

$I5,000 

$0 

$I,950 

$8,200 

$I2,000 

$57I,320 

$280,000 

$840 

$I97,6I I 

$3I,643 

$I20,706 

$30,5 I 9 

$37,I8I 

$I9,688 
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Transit- Go Line & Community Coach 

Postage 

Office Supplies 

Printing & Publications 

Small Equipment 

Software Lease/Maintenance 

Copy Machine Lease/Supplies 

Advertising 

Bank Charges 

Interest Expense 

Membership Dues 

Penalties & Fees 

License & Certifications 

Total Expenses- Operating 

Depreciation 

Depreciation 

Total Depreciation 

Total Expenses 

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 

Senior Resource Association 

Income Statement 

Budget 
Fiscal YTD Fiscal YTD Fiscal Year 
6/30/2011 6/30/2012 2012-2013 

$1,455 $1,644 $1,635 

$10,328 $10,682 $9,260 

$19,715 $7,167 $10,500 

$0 $10,102 $4,000 

$10,515 $24,445 $45,830 

$7,277 $8,612 $8,150 

$10,303 $9,560 $8,200 

$5,033 $1,764 $1,650 

$24,205 $19,716 $16,200 

$2,221 $2,305 $2,525 

$56 $620 $0 

$147 $289 $371 

$3,166,966 $3,408,539 $3,398,827 

$509,730 $488,064 $0 

$509,730 $488,064 $0 

$3,676,696 $3,896,603 $3,398,827 

($148,665) ($237,264) $0 

Page 2 of 2 



SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Financial Statements and Single Audit Reports 

June 30, 2012 

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon) 

Attachment 2 



SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Table of Contents 

June 30, 2012 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Financial Statements: 

Statement of Financial Position 

Statement of Activities 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Single Audit Reports: 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could 
Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each M<Uor Federal Program and State 
Project and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB 
Circular A-133 and Chapter I 0.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the 
State of Florida 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Projects 

Notes to Schedule ofExpenditures ofFederal Awards and State Projects 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

1-2 

3 

4 

5-6 

7 

8-16 

17- 18 

19-20 

21-22 

23 

24-25 



Morgan • J acoby• Thurn • Boyle 
& Associates, P.A. 

Certified Public Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Report 

The Board of Directors 
Senior Resource Association, Inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Senior Resource Association, 
Inc. (the Association), as of June 30, 2012, and the related statements of activities, functional 
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of Association's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. The prior year summarized comparative information has been 
derived from the Association's financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and 
in our report dated October 25, 2011, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial 
statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Senior Resource Association, Inc. as of June 30, 2012, and the changes in its 
net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accotmting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
31, 2012 on our consideration of the Association's internal control over fmancial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

(Continued) 
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liD I 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state projects 
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and NonProfit Organizations, and 
Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida, and is not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the fmancial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accoW1ting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the fmancial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

October 31, 2012 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2012 
(with summarized information as of June 30, 2011) 

2012 2011 
Temporarily 

Unrestricte< Restricted Total Total 
Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,936 32,318 58,254 289,538 
Investments 14,086 14,086 14,723 
Grants receivable 254,975 254,975 276,114 
Contributions receivable 10,000 10,000 75,127 
Accounts receivable 37,708 37,708 36,895 
Other receivables 95,091 95,091 30,384 
Inventory and prepaid expenses 134,553 134,553 139,782 
Leasehold interest, current 644 

Total current assets 572,349 32,318 604,667 863,207 

Contribution receivable, noncurrent 60,540 60,540 61,228 
Assets restricted for capital projects 3,770 3,770 3,770 
Property and equipment, net 2,708,009 1,016,682 3,724,691 4,034,920 
Leasehold interest, noncurrent 89 414 

Total assets $ 3.280.358 1,]13.310 4.393.668 5.052.539 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Line of credit 175,000 175,000 100,000 
Notes payable, current portion 50,763 50,763 47,951 
Accounts payable 345,474 345,474 383,505 
Accrued expenses 105,181 105,181 94,527 
Deferred revenue 194,094 194,094 375,812 

Total current liabilities 870,512 870,512 1,001,795 

Notes payable, net of current portion 380,965 380,965 431,499 

Total liabilities 1,251,477 1,251,477 I ,433,294 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 2,028,881 2,028,881 2,284,655 
Temporarily restricted 1,113,310 1,113,310 1,334,590 

Total net assets 2,028,881 1,113,310 3,142,191 3,619,245 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 3.280.358 1.113.310 4.393.668 5.052.539 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Statement of Activities 

Year ended June 30, 2012 
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2011) 

2012 2011 
Temporarily 

Unrestrictec Restricted Total Total 
Revenues and other support: 

Governmental fees and grants - operating $ 3,628,293 3,628,293 3,915,255 
Governmental fees and grants - capital 538,795 306,811 845,606 799,344 
Third party reimbursements 318,878 318,878 339,005 
Contributions 130,767 134,675 265,442 277,604 
Program service fees 371,096 371,096 334,321 
United Way 103,610 103,610 58,761 
Fundraising, net of direct costs of $1,724 

and $13, Ill, respectively 36,015 36,015 40,226 
Interest and dividends 738 738 620 
Other revenue 130,529 130,529 185,287 
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 742 742 5,000 
Unrealized gain on investments 2,187 
Nets assets released from restrictions 573,297 (573,297) 

Total revenues and other support 5,832,760 (131,811) 5,700,949 5,957,610 

Expenses and losses: 
Program services: 

Transportation 3,881,558 3,881,558 3,661,237 
Adult day services 531,204 531,204 565,425 
Case management services 571,073 571,073 647,872 
Nutrition 577,500 577,500 588,343 
Retired senior volunteer program 107,876 
Senior center 139,129 139,129 132,041 

Total program services 5,700,464 5,700,464 5,702,794 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 208,441 208,441 176,310 
Fundraising 111,786 Ill ,786 110,931 
Rental activity 66,697 66,697 70,387 

Total supporting services 386,924 386,924 357,628 

Total expenses 6,087,388 6,087,388 6,060,422 

Losses: 
Unrealized loss on investments 1,146 1,146 
Loss on disposal of leasehold interests 89,469 89 469 

Total expenses and losses I 146 89,469 90,615 

Change in net assets (255,774) (221,280) (477,054) (102,812) 

Net assets, beginning of year 2,284,655 I ,334,590 3,619,245 3,722,057 

Net assets, end of year $ 2,028,881 1.113,310 3,142,191 3.619.245 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

Year ended June 30, 2012 
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2011) 

Program Services 
Adult Case 
Day Management 

Transportation Services Services Nutrition 

Salaries and wages $ 1,531,348 354,214 141,881 131,990 
Fringe benefits 107,335 29,551 10,552 10,738 
Payroll taxes 144,227 32,361 12,507 12,300 
Retirement 12,505 1,883 750 584 
Employment expenses 17,931 3,171 780 5,846 

Total employee related 1,813,346 421,180 166,470 161,458 

Fuel 579,202 9,735 
Client expenses 14,444 379,577 
Maintenance 401,992 7,274 2,435 8,293 
Subcontract services 38,612 5,476 1,504 14,270 
Meals 9,961 324,001 

Insurance 249,902 6,264 3,412 6,201 
Supplies 20,403 11,236 658 11,615 
Advertising 9,560 914 281 1,423 
Utilities 24,099 15,369 1 '169 1,946 
Occupancy 47,996 18,285 2,397 4,899 

Interest expense and bank charges 6,435 1,385 518 576 
Other 620 930 368 149 
Professional fees 124,758 12,549 4,837 5,751 
Telephone 23,568 5,803 1 '180 1,720 
Travel 10,938 1,234 2,876 1,407 

Fundraising expense 
Postage 1,644 416 720 853 
Community outreach 5,295 481 90 96 
Dues and subscriptions 2,305 1,099 329 659 
Licenses & fees 1,106 1,134 13 448 

Equipment 10,102 332 127 147 
Printing 7 167 371 219 222 

3,393,494 521,693 569,180 555,869 

Depreciation 488,064 9,511 1,893 21,631 

Total expenses $ 3,881,558 531.204 571,073 577,500 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Program Services SUQQOrt Services 
Management 

Senior and Rental 2012 2011 
Center Total General Fundraising Activity Total Total 

$ 41,403 2,200,836 61,362 62,330 2,324,528 2,424,674 
1,277 159,453 5,729 877 166,059 149,606 
3,647 205,042 5,156 5,255 215,453 225,689 

218 15,940 1,825 271 18,036 24,848 
1,058 28,786 1,573 1,222 31,581 47,181 

47,603 2,610,057 75,645 69,955 2,755,657 2,871,998 

588,937 588,937 516,318 
394,021 394,021 496,358 

1,046 421,040 6,365 5,083 432,488 303,195 
5,995 65,857 5,057 6,073 76,987 54,283 

333,962 333,962 375,707 

857 266,636 10,383 673 277,692 300,447 
6,705 50,617 1,061 577 52,255 43,549 
1,637 13,815 784 1,245 15,844 21,778 
2,821 45,404 3,965 629 1,862 51,860 51,435 
4,649 78,226 7,572 1,195 3,938 90,931 71,994 

177 9,091 1,676 203 25,816 36,786 51,090 
2,067 11 344 2,422 1,325 

9,135 157,030 61,077 4,141 7,000 229,248 116,652 
1,226 33,497 3,900 618 38,015 35,152 

567 17,022 620 1,774 19,416 27,665 

4,384 4,384 7,832 
136 3,769 104 4,229 8,102 7,894 
225 6,187 240 336 6,763 5,054 
106 4,498 68 447 5,013 6,172 

4 2,705 42 7 2,754 1,906 

41 10,749 426 67 250 11,492 
608 8,587 5,630 9,806 24,023 44 458 

83,538 5,123,774 184,626 111,786 38,866 5,459,052 5,412,262 

55,591 576,690 23,815 27,831 628,336 648,160 

$ 139~129 5~700~464 208~441 111~786 66~697 6~087)88 6~060~422 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended June 30, 2012 
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2011) 

2012 2011 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Change in net assets $ (477,054) (102,812) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash flows 

provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 628,336 648,160 
Grants restricted to capital projects (306,811) (333,849) 
Gain on sale of fixed assets (742) 
Change in leasehold interest 589 607 
Stock donations (15,084) (16,318) 
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments I ,146 (2,187) 
Loss on disposal of leasehold interests 89,469 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Grants receivable 21,139 215,850 
Contributions receivable 65,127 (75,127) 
Accounts receivable (813) 13,775 
Other receivables (64,707) 1,082 
Inventory and prepaid expenses 5,229 8,476 
Contribution receivable, noncurrent 688 (616) 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable (38,031) 8,060 
Accrued expenses 10,654 (104,004) 
Deferred revenue (181.718) 117.746 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (262,583) 378.843 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of investments (509) (374) 
Proceeds from sale of investments 15,084 17,334 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 6,800 
Capital expenditures (324,165) (370,71 0) 

Net cash used in investing activities (302,790) (353,750) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Grants restricted to capital projects 306,811 333,849 
Proceeds from line of credit 125,000 230,000 
Payments on line of credit (50,000) (330,000) 
Principal loan payments (47,722) (139,129) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 334,089 94,720 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (231,284) 119,813 

Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 289,538 169,725 

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year $ 58.254 289.538 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

(1) Organization 

Senior Resource Association, Inc. is a nonprofit organization providing activities, 
education and services benefiting seniors in Indian River County. Senior Resource 
Association, Inc. (the Association) was incorporated as a nonprofit organization under 
Internal Revenue Code Section 501 (c)(3) in January 1974 to provide programs and services 
designed to promote an active, healthy, independent lifestyle for older adults. The 
Association provides social and educational programming for active older adults, assists 
seniors and their families in finding the resources they seek, and delivers quality, 
professional services that meet a senior's individual needs. In addition, the Association is 
contracted by the Indian River County as the Community Transportation Coordinator 
operating the GoLine, a public transit system and Community Coach, a door-to-door 
transportation program. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Presentation 

The Association classifies resources for reporting purposes into three net asset 
categories. Those categories include unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and 
permanently restricted net assets as follows: 

Unrestricted - Represents the portion of expendable funds that are available for 
support of operations. Funds designated by the Board for specific purposes are also 
repOiied as unrestricted net assets since the Board has the ability to release any 
restrictions on these funds. 

Temporarily Restricted - Represents the portion of expendable funds that are 
restricted by the grantor or donor as to the way they may be utilized. 

Permanently Restricted - Represents funds that must be maintained by the 
Association in perpetuity. During 2012, the Association had no funds required to be 
accounted for under this classification. 

(b) Revenue Recognition 

All contributions/donations are considered available for unrestricted use unless 
specifically restricted by the donor. Contributions/donations are considered 
temporarily restricted if a donor imposes a restriction that may be satisfied by the 
passage of time or the actions of the Association. A permanently restricted 
contribution/donation stipulates that the contribution/donation be maintained 
permanently but may allow the organization to use all or part of the income derived 
from the underlying asset for unrestricted purposes. When a donor restriction expires, 
that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported 
in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Support that is 
restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the 
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. 

(Continued) 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The Association has contracted to provide non-emergency transportation services and 
in-home services such as homemaking, respite, and case management, to all eligible 
Medicaid clients. Reimbursement from Medicaid is based on units of service 
provided. 

(c) Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Association considers all highly 
liquid debt instruments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to 
be cash equivalents. 

(d) Investments 

Investments are reported at fair value. Donated investments are recorded at fair 
market value on the date of donation and adjusted for changes in market value at year 
end. Investment interest, dividends, and gains and losses on sales of securities are 
reflected in the statement of activities as unrestricted revenue. As of June 30, 2012, 
investments consist of 356 shares of Exelon Corporation Stock with an original cost 
basis of$31,915, which is stated at fair value of$13,393, and a money market fund of 
$693. Fair value is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. 

(e) Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for purchased items and fair value for 
contributed items. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. 
Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 
the assets, which ranges from 4 to 30 years. 

(f) Contributed Use of Long-Lived Assets 

Indian River County (the County) has received on behalf of the Association, 
Department of Transportation (the DOT) Section 5307, Federal Transit Capital and 
Operation Assistance Formula Grants. Under the grants, the County is the grantee 
and the Association is a sub-recipient. The DOT requires certain capital acquisitions 
purchased under the grants to be titled to the grantee (the County). The County has 
given the use of these long-lived assets to the Association, for as long as the 
Association remains the County's Community Transportation Coordinator. 

The Association has recorded these assets as capital additions and recognized 
expenses in the period the long-lived assets are used. Additionally, the contribution is 
reported as restricted supp01t that increases temporarily restricted net assets. Expense 
for depreciation is recognized over the asset's useful life, and net assets are 
periodically reclassified from temporarily restricted to unrestricted as these expenses 
are recognized. 

(g) Donated services 

The Association does not record donated services for any volunteers working in a 
nonprofessional capacity since the volunteers' time does not meet the criteria for 
recognition. 

(Continued) 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

(h) Income Taxes 

The Association is generally exempt from federal and state income taxes under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is not considered a private 
foundation under Section 509(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Association 
has unrelated business income resulting from rental activities that may result in 
taxable income. As of June 30, 2012, the Association has approximately $160,000 of 
unused net operating loss carryforwards available to be applied to future taxable 
income that expire 2025 through 2032. The Association's income tax filings are 
subject to audit by various taxing authorities. The Association's open audit periods 
are 2009 - 20 12. 

(i) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(j) Concentrations of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Association to concentrations of 
credit risk consist principally of cash, investments, pledges receivable, and assets 
restricted to capital projects. Cash balances maintained in financial institutions may 
at times be in excess of the FDIC limit. The Association has not experienced any 
losses on such amounts and does not believe it is exposed to any significant risk with 
respect to such balances. In addition, the Association's excess cash are invested into 
repurchase agreements providing for maturity on a daily basis and are collateralized 
with Federal agency securities held by the assigning bank. As of June 30,2012, cash 
includes $35,1 I 9 of deposits invested in overnight repurchase agreements. The 
underlying securities pledged by the bank as collateral had market values totaling 
$35,925 as of June 30, 2012. 

The Association had no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to 
contributions receivable and collateral is not required to support contributions 
receivable. 

(k) Prior Period Information 

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative 
infonnation in total but not by net asset class. Such infonnation does not include 
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in confonnity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information 
should be read in conjunction with the Association's financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2011 from which the summarized infonnation was derived. 

(Continued) 



11 

SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

(3) Contributions Receivable 

Long term contributions receivable consists of an unconditional promise to give from a 
charitable remainder trust. The Association's allocable share of the charitable remainder 
trust assets equals approximately $78,000 at June 30, 2012. The trust is to provide 
exclusively for the benefit of the beneficiary during her lifetime. At the beneficiary's 
passing, the trust will distribute the Association's share of the remainder. The contribution 
is recorded at $60,540, which is the net present value of the estimated future cash flow 
based on the fair market value of the trust assets. The discount on that amount is computed 
using Internal Revenue Service single life remainder interest actuarial tables and a risk-free 
interest rate of 0.7%. The contribution is expected to be received sometime beyond four 
years. Amortization of the discount is included in contribution revenue. The unamortized 
discount at June 30, 2012 is $2,031. The contribution is considered collectable; thus no 
allowance for uncollectible contributions has been recorded. 

(4) Property and Equipment 

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Association's property and equipment consisted of the 
following: 

2012 2011 

Land $ 963,938 963,938 
Buildings and improvements 2,731,271 2,734,036 
Vehicles I ,346,502 I ,457,236 
DOT titled equipment 2,320,028 2,461,880 
Furniture and equipment 830,928 719,089 
Computer equipment 314,848 238,710 

8,507,515 8,574,889 
Less accumulated depreciation 4,782,824 4,539,969 

$ 3J24!691 4!034!920 

Disposal of equipment, which was originally acquired under a Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) grant, with a value greater than $5,000, or disposed of before the end 
of its service life, requires reimbursement of the sales proceeds to the FTA in an amount 
proportionate to its original percentage participation in the grant. Alternatively, the 
proceeds may be used to offset the costs of replacement equipment subject to the approval 
of the FT A. The cost of assets titled to the County and contributed to the Association for 
their use amounted to $3,012,728 at June 30, 2012. There were no such disposals during 
the years ended June 30,2012 and 2011. 

(Continued) 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

(5) Leasehold Interest 

The Association leases two and a half acres of vacant land from the County under an 
agreement that provides for rent at $1 per year through 2049. 

The value of the leasehold interest for the lease was valued at the inception of the lease, at 
the present value of the fair market rent over the committed lease term using a 6% discount 
rate and amounted to $91,236. 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Association exchanged this leasehold interest for 
a new County lease, which is for the use of County land and buildings for its transportation 
operations, as more fully described in note 7. The exchange resulted in a loss of leasehold 
interest of$89,469. 

(6) Indebtedness 

As of June 30,2012 and 2011, the Association's indebtedness consisted ofthe following: 

Note payable to bank under $500,000 line of credit 
payable on demand and expiring on December 
31, 2012, with interest at prime plus 1% and a 
minimum of 5% (5% at June 30, 2012) and is 
secured by the Association's real property. $ 

Mortgage note payable, due in monthly payments of 
$6,128, including interest at 5.5%, through June 
23, 20 I 9 and is secured by the Association's real 
property. 

Total indebtedness 

Less current portion of long-term debt and notes 
payable under lines of credit 

Long term debt $ 

I 75,000 

431,728 
606,728 

225,763 

380,965 

100,000 

479,450 
579,450 

147,951 

431.499 

During the years ended June 30, 2012 and 201 I, the Association paid interest on the 
indebtedness of$33,610 and $40,508, respectively. 

The $500,000 line of credit expires on December 3 I, 20 I 2 and requires a pay down to $I 00 
for a period of 30 days during the calendar year term of the loan, which was last complied 
with during March 2011. As of June 30,2012, the Association was in compliance with the 
provisions of the loan agreement. 

(Continued) 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The aggregate maturities of notes payable and long-term debt as of June 30, 2012 are as 
follows: 

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2013 $ 225,763 22,775 248,538 
2014 53,667 19,870 73,537 
2015 56,738 16,800 73,538 
2016 59,948 13,590 73,538 
2017 63,413 10,124 73,537 
Thereafter 147,199 9,211 156,410 

$ 606,728 92,370 699,098 

Commitments 

Leases 

The Association leased vacant land from the County under a lease agreement committed 
through the year 2049, as described in note 5. The rent under the lease was $1 per year. 
Effective June 1, 2012, this vacant land lease was terminated and replaced with a new lease 
for County land and buildings. The lease term is for five years, terminating on May 31, 
2017, and provides for a total rental of $5 due in advance. The lease is cancelable in the 
event the Association ceases acting as the County's Transit Service Provider under its 
transportation operations. 

The Association leases certain office equipment under an operating lease that expires in 
2016. The committed annual payments as of June 30,2012 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

Total minimum lease payments 

$ 

$ 

Operating 
Leases 

11,988 
11,988 
II ,988 
5,994 

41,958 

The Association has entered into an agreement to purchase web hosting and financial 
software services for a period of five years. The total commitment related to this contract 
equals $63,750, payable over five years with $15,750 due in the first year and $12,000 due 
annually thereafter. This commitment expires in 2016. 

The Association has entered into an agreement to purchase three additional buses with a 
cost of $1,080,777. The buses are expected to be received during the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2013. The funding for these buses will come from the Association's Federal 
Transit Capital Assistance grants, of which $1,650,044 is unexpended at June 30, 2012. 

(Continued) 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

(8) Governmental Fees and Grants 

The Association received governmental fees and grants during the years ended June 30, 
20 I2 and 20 II under the following programs: 

Area Agency on Aging Grants: 
Community Care for the Elderly $ 322,943 

I8,978 
59,34I 
53,993 

Home Care for the Elderly 
Alzheimer's Disease Initiation 
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 
Title Ill B - Supportive Services and Senior Centers 
Title Ill C -Nutrition Services 
ARRA - Title III C I - Aging Congregate Nutrition 

Services 
ARRA- Title Ill C2- Aging Home-Delivered 

Nutrition Services 
Title Ill E- Supportive Services 
Emergency Home Energy Assistance 

Florida Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged 

Federal Department of Transportation Grants: 
Federal Transit Capital Assistance 
Federal Transit Operating Assistance 
Public Transportation for Nonurbanized Areas 
New Freedom Program 
Job Access- Reverse Commute 

Florida Department of Transportation Grants: 
Block Grants 
Evening Bus Service Grant 
North County Corridor Grant 
Transit Corridor Operating Grant 
Service Development Grant 

Corporation for National and Community Service
Retired and Senior Volunteer Program 

Indian River County 

Fellsmere Service Grant 
Sebastian Service Grant 

Total governmental fees and grants 

I37,906 
243,575 

52,574 
43,2IO 

236,288 

845,606 
760,035 
69,000 
65,275 
45,390 

3I 0,374 

I3I,329 
I57,200 
II3,0I7 

726,6I5 

3I ,250 
50,000 

$ 4,473.899 

353,994 
35,097 
60,780 
55,603 

I99,895 
379,813 

I2,302 

9,202 
64,405 
58,969 

I83,6II 

779,344 
800,3IO 
48,637 
45,IOO 
86,742 

3I2,743 
48,II9 

202,500 
79,800 

94,759 

752,874 

50,000 

4.7I4.599 

As of June 30, 20I2, the Association had approximately $2,077,903 in unearned operating 
revenues and $I,766,960 in unearned capital revenues available for future expenditures 
under these grants through December 3I, 20 I4. The Association has expenditures of 
$II4, 738 in prepaid insurance along with the corresponding deferred revenue. 

(Continued) 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

(9) Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 are available for the 
following specific purposes: 

2012 2011 

Department of Transportation titled equipment $ 1,016,682 1,046,345 
Senior Center 18,290 
New senior center 3,770 3,770 
Charitable remainder trust 60,540 61,228 
Leasehold interest 90,058 
Home delivered meals 7,766 61,349 
Comprehensive needs assessment 11,922 
Net community growth 23,550 
Medication management 20,000 
Adult day care scholarships 10,000 10,000 
Adult day care music program 2,630 

Total $ I! 113!3 I 0 I!334!590 

In June 2012, the Association was awarded a $112,500 grant from United Way. A portion 
of the grant will be funded on a census-based reimbursement basis and the remainder will 
be for the Association's meals on wheels program. 

Temporarily restricted net assets released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses or 
by otherwise satisfying restrictions during the years ended June 30, 20I2 and 20I I related 
to the following: 

Department of Transportation titled equipment 
Grant receivable from United Way 
Chorus and retreat 
Leasehold interest 
Home delivered meals 
Comprehensive needs assessment 
Senior Center activities 
Volunteer coordinator 
Net community growth 
Medication management 
Adult day care scholarship 
Adult day care music program 

Total 

$ 

$ 

336,475 

30,000 
589 

79,946 
52,077 
I8,290 

23,550 
20,000 
10,000 
2,370 

573297 

347,201 
50,000 

607 
5,478 

43,705 
5,300 

45229I 

(Continued) 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

(10) Retirement Plan 

The Association has established a tax sheltered annuity plan for the benefit of its 
employees in accordance with Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under the 
plan, a contribution is made to the account of each participating employee, based on their 
compensation. Employer contributions represent a 50% match of the employee 
contribution, up to a maximum of 4% of the employee's wages. Employees can request 
that an additional voluntary deduction from their gross wages be contributed to the plan. 
Employees hired on or after October I, 2007 vest in employer contributions over a five 
year vesting schedule. 

For the years ended June 30, 20I2 and 20Il, the Association contributed $I8,036 and 
$24,848, respectively, on behalf of the employees. 

(11) Subsequent Events 

In preparing these financial statements, the Association has evaluated events and 
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through October 3I, 20 I2, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 

Subsequent to June 30, 20I2, the Association was awarded the following grants: 

Florida Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged (July I, 20I2 to June 30, 2013) $ 262,292 

Medicaid Non-Emergency Transportation Program 
(July I, 20I2 to June 30, 20I3) 237,905 

Community Care for the Elderly (July 1, 20I2 to June 
30, 20I5, with 20I2/13 annual award amount listed) 357,I44 

Indian River County (October I, 20I2 to September 
30,20I3) 475,I24 

Alzheimer's Disease Initiative (July I, 20I2 to June 
30, 20 I5, with an annual award amount) 60,780 

Home Care for the Elderly (July I, 20I2 to June 30, 
20I5, with 20I2/I3 annual award amount listed) 55,367 

Emergency Home Energy Assistance Program (August 
I, 20I2 to June 30, 20I5, with 20I2113 annual 
award amount listed) 43,556 

Federal Transit Capital Investment (February I, 20I2 
to February 28, 20I3 500,000 

Federal Transit Capital Assistance (July I, 20I2 to 
September 30, 20 I2) 287,575 

Total grants $ 2!279)43 

The Association has entered into an agreement to purchase four additional buses with a 
cost of $389,584. The buses are expected to be received during the fiscal year ending June 
30, 20I3. The funding for these buses will come from the Association's Federal Transit 
Capital grants noted above. 
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Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 

Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 

The Board ofDirectors 
Senior Resources Association, Inc.: 

We have audited the financial statements of Senior Resources Association, Inc. (the Association) 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 
2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

The Association's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over fmancial reporting. In planning and perfonning our audit, we considered the 
Association's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Association's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the Association's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Association's financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions oflaws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

700- 20th Street • Vero Beach, Florida 32960 • Phone 772-562-4158 • Telefax 772-563-2024 • \VWw.mjtbcpa.com 
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors, management, 
and federal and state awarding agencies and pass~through entities and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of 
public record and its distribution is not limited. 

October 31, 2012 
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Requirements 
That Could Have a Direct and Materia) Effect on 
Each Major Federal Program and State Project 

and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 
and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida 

The Board of Directors 
Senior Resources Association, Inc.: 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Senior Resources Association, Inc. (the Association) with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the requirements described in the Florida Department 
of Financial Services' State Projects Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of its major federal programs and its major state projects for the year ended June 30, 
2012. The Association's major federal programs and major state projects are identified in the 
swnmary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to 

. each of its major federal programs and state projects is the responsibility of the Association's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Association's compliance based 
on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and NonProfit Organizations; and Chapter 10.650, Rules of 
the Auditor General of the State of Florida. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and Chapter 
10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida, require that we plan and perfonn the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
progran1 or state project occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Association's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circwnstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Association's compliance 
with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the Association complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs and major state projects for the year ended June 30,2012. 

700- 20th Street • Vero Beach, Florida 32960 • Phone 772-562-4158 • TeleCax 77 2-563-2024 • www.mjrbcpa.com 
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Internal Control over Compliance 

The management of the Association is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to federal programs and state projects. In planning and performing our audit, we 
considered the Associationjs internal control over compliance with the requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program or state project in order to determine 
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the 
Florida Department of Financial Services' State Projects Compliance Supplement, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal 
control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program or state project on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program or state project will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of tllis section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors, management, 
and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of 
public record and its distribution is not limited. 

1!1(/ft&ltN, J1co07, 7iiu~ &yt6 / Ass"c tl'l-t€::5" /!/!-. 
October 31,2012 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Schedule ofExpenditures ofFederal Awards and State Projects 

YearendedJune30,20I2 

CFDA/ 
Federal/State Agency CSFA Grant Total 

Federal Award/State Project No. No. Expenditures 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services: 
Pass-through from Florida Department of Elder 

Affairs, Area Agency on Aging: 
Aging Cluster: 

Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 IUOII-9300, 
IUOI2-9300 $ 53,993 

Title III B - Supportive Services and Senior 93.044 IAOII-9300, 
Centers IAII2-9300 I37,906 

Title III C I and III C2 - Nutrition Services 93.045 IAOII-9300, 
IAII2-9300 243,575 

Total Aging Cluster 435,474 

Title III E- Supportive Services 93.052 IAOII-9300, 
IAII2-9300 52,574 

Emergency Home Energy Assistance 93.568 IPOI0-9300 
IPOII-9300 43,2IO 

Total U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services 53I,258 

U.S. Depa~iment of Transportation: 
Pass-through from Florida Department of 

Transportation: 
Transit Services Programs: 

New Freedom Program 20.52I APH82 
APT35 65,275 

Job Access- Reverse Commute 20.5I6 APT33 45,390 
Total Transit Services Programs II 0,665 

Pass-through from Indian River County, Florida: 
Federal Transit Capital and Operating Assistance 

(Section 5307*) 20.507 N/A I ,605,64I 
Public Transportation for Nonurbanized Areas ANP85 

(Section 53 II) 20.509 APT03 69,000 
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 1,785,306 

Total expenditures of Federal awards 2,3I6,564 

* -denotes major program 

(Continued) 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Projects, Continued 

Federal/State Agency 
Federal Award/State Project 

Florida Department of Elder Affairs: 
Pass-through from Area Agency on Aging: 

Community Care for the Elderly 
Home Care for the Elderly 
Alzheimer's Disease Initiation 

Total Florida Department of Elder Affairs 

Florida Department of Transportation: 
Florida Commission for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged Trip and equipment grant program 
Transit Corridor Program - Operating* 
Transit Corridor Program - North County* 
Public Transit Block Grant Program* 
Public Transit Service Development Program* 

Total Florida Department of Transportation 

Total expenditures of State Projects 

Total expenditures ofFederal Awards and State 
Projects 

* - denotes major program 

CFDAI 
CSFA 
No. 

65.010 
65.001 
65.004 

55.001 
55.013 
55.013 
55.010 
55.012 

Grant 
No. 

IC011-9300 
IH011-9300 
IZ011-9300 

AQB24 
AP049 
AOX67 
APT70 
AQG07 

Total 
Expenditures 

322,943 
18,978 
59,341 

401,262 

236,288 
157,200 
131,329 
310,374 
113,017 
948,208 

1,349,470 

$ 3.666,034 

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures ofFederal Awards and State Projects. 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Projects 

Year ended June 30,2012 

(1) Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards and State Projects includes 
the federal and state grant activity of Senior Resource Association, Inc. and is presented on 
the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and NonProfit Organizations, and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor 
General of the State of Florida. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may 
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial 
statements. 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2012 

Section I- Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements: 
Type of auditors' report issued 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Unqualified 

Material weaknesses identified? No 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? No 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards: 
Identification of major federal awards - U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit 

Capital and Operating Assistance Program- CFDA No. 20.507 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weaknesses identified? No 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? No 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major federal awards? 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be rep01ted in accordance 
with Section 51 O(a) of Circular A-133? 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Awards 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

State Projects: 

Unqualified 

No 

$ 300.000 

Yes 

Identification of major state projects - Florida Department of Transportation, Transit Corridor 
Program - Operating - CFSA No. 55.013; Florida Department of Transportation, Transit 
Corridor Program - North County - CFSA No. 55.013; Florida Department of 
Transportation, Public Transit Block Grant Program - CFSA No. 55.010; and, Florida 
Department of Transportation, Public Transit Service Development Program - CFSA No. 
55.012 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weaknesses identified? No 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? No 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major state projects? 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance 
with Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General oft he State of Florida? 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Awards 

Unqualifed 

No 

$ 300.000 

(Continued) 
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SENIOR RESOURCE ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs, Continued 

Section II- Financial Statement Findings 

There were no findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Section III- Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no findings related to the federal awards which are required to be reported in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Section IV- State Projects Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no findings related to the state projects which are required to be reported in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Section V- Summary of Prior Year Audit Findings Relating to State Projects 

There were no findings related to the state projects which are required to be reported in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Section VI -Management Letter Relating to State Projects 

Nl A - There were no matters relating to State Projects that were required to be reported in a 
management letter. 



INTRODUCTION 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY 

METROPOLITAN PLANNING 0RGANIZA TION 

Quarterly Status Report 
January 1, 2013- March 31, 2013 

This status report for the third quarter ofFY 2012/2013 identifies the activities undertaken by the 
Indian River County MPO during the reporting period. 

WORKPROGRAMSTATUS 

During the third quarter of FY 2012/2013, MPO staff completed various activities related to the 
approved UPWP. These are identified below. 

• Task 1.1- Program Management 

From January 1, 2013 to March 31,2013, MPO staff undertook all applicable MPO program 
management functions. That involved general administration and financial management 
activities, as well as coordination with various local governments and with FDOT. Specific 
activities included: 

attendance at one MPO meeting, one Technical Advisory Committee (T AC) meeting, 
one joint Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC)/Technical Advisory Committee 
(TAC) meeting, and one Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BAC) meeting 
provision oftechnical assistance to the MPO, TAC, CAC and BAC 
development of agendas, staffreports, and minutes for MPO, TAC, CAC and BAC 
meetings 
preparation ofvarious MPO-related correspondences 
supervision of MPO staff activities 
coordination of MPO activities with local governments and FDOT 
maintenance of the MPO's web site 
circulation of orientation materials to new MPQ_ and advisory board members 
distribution of new MPO mailing address and contact information to public agencies, 
local governments, consultants, and citizens 
development, reproduction and distribution ofthe MPO newsletter 
preparation of the second quarter progress report and invoice for FY 2012/13 

During the quarter, the MPO developed its post-census MPO Apportionment Plan. In so 
doing, MPO staff reviewed the previous MPO Apportionment Plans; analyzed 2010 census 
population data by jurisdiction (an activity described in more detail in Task 2.1, Land Use 
and Socioeconomic Data Development); evaluated the applicability of the existing MPO 
membership structure to the current population; and developed the draft 2013 Apportionment 
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Plan. It is anticipated that the plan will be adopted by the MPO in the fourth quarter of 
2012113. 

Task 1.2 - Program Development: UPWP 

During the reporting period, the MPO coordinated with officials of other MPOs, FHW A, and 
FDOT and discussed several issues pertaining to the MPO Unified Planning Work Program 
(UPWP). Those issues included identifying the effects of the new highway authorization 
bill, MAP-21, on future PL funding; considering newly required MPO responsibilities 
contained in MAP-21; evaluating the effects of sequestration on the existing UPWP; 
discussing the Florida MPO PL fund allocation formula with the MPOAC; and considering 
the effect of the newly urbanized areas of Florida on present and future PL funding. 

Also during the reporting period, MPO staff reconciled quarterly invoices with partial PL 
fund authorizations and forecasted PL expenditures through the end of the fiscal year in 
anticipation of possible UPWP revisions to be undertaken in the next quarter. 

• Task 1.3 and Task 1.4 

These are FDOT tasks relating to support/match for the Federal Highway Administration 
Planning (PL) fund program and the Section 5303 program, respectively. No MPO activities 
are associated with those tasks. 

• Task 1.5 - Training 

During the quarter, MPO staff attended several training sessions via web conferences 
pertaining to a number of relevant issues. Web conferences attended included a Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) web conference on Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 
reporting procedures; a USDOT web conference on pedestrian friendly design; and a web 
conference on planning ethics sponsored by the American Planning Association (AP A). 

Also during the quarter, MPO staff participated in an FDOT workshop on Trade and 
Logistics held at the FDOT District IV Office. At the workshop, MPO staff attended 
presentations on topics that included future trade and commodity flows; major Strategic 
Intermodal System (SIS) improvements in the District; and freight handling and truck routing 
issues in the District. 

• Task 1.6 - Public Involvement 

During the reporting period, MPO staff responded to inquiries from citizens, local 
governments, business and community groups, and other parties about MPO plans, actions, 
and activities. Consistent with the adopted public participation plan, the MPO logs, 
evaluates, and, if requested, responds to all comments it receives from the public. That 
public contact information is entered into the MPO's public information database and is used 
to evaluate overall public involvement efforts. 
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Throughout the quarter, staff made the MPO' s major plans, studies, and programs available 
for public distribution at a number of outlets, including the Indian River County Main and 
Sebastian Branch Libraries and at the Indian River County Community Development 
Department reception desk. 

Also throughout the quarter, staff maintained the MPO web site. That site is structured as 
part of the County's general web site. Among the regularly updated information items on the 
web site are meeting dates, agenda minutes, staff reports, newsletters, and other information. 
That web site also has MPO staff e-mail addresses. 

During the quarter, MPO staff and its consultants conducted a series of public involvement 
activities in conjunction with the Transit Development Plan (TDP) Major Update. Those 
activities included distributing surveys to system users; compiling survey results; and 
conducting a series of geographic public workshops at various locations throughout the 
county. The results of the public outreach process will be used in the development ofTDP 
plan alternatives. 

Finally, MPO staff published and distributed its quarterly MPO newsletter. That newsletter 
addressed a variety of topics in Indian River County. To complete that task, MPO staff added 
to and maintained mailing lists of interested individuals and community representatives; 
wrote a number of articles pertaining to transportation activities in the county; designed a 
layout for the newsletter; and managed publication and mail out. 

• Task 2.1 - Land Use and Socioeconomic Data Analysis 

During the quarter, MPO staff collected and analyzed 2010 US Census Data on population 
by local jurisdiction in Indian River County. Using those data, the MPO staff developed a 
revised MPO Apportionment Plan. In so doing, MPO staff evaluated the existing voting 
structure and membership composition of the MPO to ensure that it provides proportional 
representation on the MPO governing board for all memberjurisdictions. Staff also used the 
new population data to evaluate alternative representation scenarios. (Development of the 
2013 Apportionment Plan is also described in Task 1.1, Program Management). It is 
anticipated that the MPO will adopt the 2013 Apportionment Plan during the fourth quarter 
of2012/13. 

Throughout the quarter, MPO staff assisted FDOT staff and consultants in the development 
of socio-economic databases for the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Model (TCRPM) year 
2010 Validation. That model, which will form the basis of the 2040 Long Range 
Transportation Plan Update, contains detailed socio-economic data at the TAZ level. To 
complete that task, the MPO coordinated with FDOT and consultants to identifY data 
requirements. Since the new TCPRM will utilize an Activity-Based Model (ABM) structure, 
the MPO engaged in some new activities, such as identifYing the population in the T AZs by 
age grouping and collecting employment data by T AZ in a number of specific Standard 
Industrial Code (SIC) categories. 
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During the quarter, MPO staff developed a five-year population update by T AZ for use in 
interim year model runs, traffic analysis, studies, and other planning applications. To 
complete that task, the MPO used information from the Vacant Parcel Model and from the 
Bureau of Economic and Business Research and projected near-term trends by TAZ. 

Also during the quarter, MPO staff performed a 2013 Vacant Parcel model run. To complete 
the task, MPO staff updated the shape file depicting existing proposed subdivisions; 
downloaded data from the Property Appraiser's Office; and reviewed model output. That 
information is used in a variety of applications, including population forecasting and travel 
demand model validation. 

• Task 2.2 - Traffic Count and Transportation Data Collection and Analysis 

In the third quarter ofFY 2012/2013, staff undertook several traffic count data collection and 
analysis activities. Those included: 

o conducting 59 24-hour, 15-minute interval, automatic machine classification counts, 
as part of the Indian River County Annual Traffic Count Program 

o conducting 5 special counts, including approach counts and speed studies 
o conducting 36 intersection turning movement counts 

That information was compiled and is maintained in a computer database. 

• Task 2.3 - Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Analysis 

During the quarter, MPO staff created or modified a number of GIS transportation 
geodatabase layers and project shape files. Those activities included creating a map of 
proposed and existing Oslo Road Conservation Area Greenway Trail corridor segments; 
making changes to existing transit route shape files; and modifYing a map of potential transit 
hub locations in central Indian River County. In addition, a number of administrative tasks, 
such as adding metadata to existing GIS files, were undertaken. 

• Task 3.1 - Long Range Planning 

During the quarter, MPO staff undertook a number of preliminary activities in preparation for 
the 2040 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP). Some of the activities undertaken 
included attending Treasure Coast Regional Planning Model (TCRPM) year 2010 validation 
meetings; assisting in the selection of a preferred modeling structure; identifYing required 
changes to the MPO's TAZ map; and reviewing LRTP requirements and timeframes 
identified in MAP-21. 

Since the new TCRPM will utilize an Activity-Based Modeling (ABM) structure, MPO staff 
collected a variety of detailed roadway and transit network data. Some of the data included 
transit system network, routes, bus stop locations, and multi-modal roadway characteristics. 
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• Task 3.2 - Transit Planning 

Throughout the quarter, MPO staff coordinated with City, County, Senior Resource 
Association and FDOT staff on a number of intermodal project planning activities. For 
example, MPO staff met with County and SRA staff to coordinate the development of a new 
transit hub in downtown Vero Beach. During those meetings, MPO staff discussed grant 
administration issues, the applicability of federal funding guidelines to the project, and the 
suitability of a number of proposed hub locations. In addition, MPO staff continued to 
provide assistance to City and County staff to obtain grant funding for intermodal projects, 
including the Aviation Boulevard and downtown Vero Beach transit hub intermodal projects. 

With respect to grant administration activities, MPO staff coordinated with FDOT staff, 
prepared BCC and MPO agenda items, and took necessary actions to ensure the continuation 
of a number of federal and state grants. Those activities included: 

• Developing a draft 2013114 5307 Grant Application; 
• Writing a quarterly status update for all active transit and intermodal grants; 
• Preparing invoices for all active transit and intermodal grants; 
• Preparing supplemental JP As and agreements for the continuation of FDOT 

grants; and 
• Conducting Quarterly TEAM/ECHO activities. 

During the quarter, staff began development of an update to its Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DB E) program. Staff anticipates 
completing the update in the fourth quarter of2012/13. 

As it has in the past, MPO staff participated in a quarterly meeting with County staff and 
Senior Resource Association staff to discuss transit operations and related issues. MPO staff 
also assisted County staff and Senior Resource Association (SRA) staff in administering 
federal and state capital, operating and intermodal grants. As part of the intermodal grant 
administration and development process, MPO staff conducted Technical Advisory Group 
(TAG) meetings to update FDOT on the status of its corridor and intermodal grants. Staff 
also updated its quarterly report on the status of those grants. 

• Task 3.3 - Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Development 

During the quarter, MPO staff began the process of developing its 2013114 - 2017118 TIP. 
In so doing, staff analyzed the most recent FDOT work program to determine the funding 
status of the MPO's top priorities as identified in the MPO Priority Projects report. The 
MPO anticipates development and adoption of the new TIP in the fourth quarter. 

• Task 3.4 - Congestion Management Process (CMP) 

Throughout the quarter, MPO staff coordinated with City ofVero Beach, County Public 
Works, SRA, and FDOT staff to discuss previously-identified Congestion Management 
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Process priorities. Those priorities included turn lane improvements on 1 ih Street at Indian 
River Boulevard; improvements to l21h Street at 2ih Avenue; and transit service in the 
Central Beach!SR AlA area. 

• Task 4.1 - Transportation Disadvantaged Program 

MPO staff expenses for the provision of administrative support for the County's 
transportation disadvantaged program are incurred against the County's approved year 
2012/13 TD grant as indicated in the MPO's UPWP. Those TD activities are reported 
separately to the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged. 

• Task 4.2 - Comprehensive Plan Consistency 

During the quarter, MPO staff addressed a number of issues pertaining to the Capital 
Improvement Element (CIE) of the Indian River County Comprehensive Plan. MPO staff 
continued to meet with County Community Development and Public Works staff and assist 
with the development of project schedules, descriptions, and FDOT grant funding 
information. 

Also during the quarter, MPO staff reviewed the Land Use Plan and zoning regulations of the 
City of Vero Beach in order to determine whether proposed transit hub locations were 
consistent with those plans and regulations. 

• Task 4.3 - Bicycle/Pedestrian Planning Program 

During the quarter, MPO staff participated in a number of bike/ped activities, including 
reviewing priorities for grant applications and studies; participating in a number of 
educational outreach activities; and attending a meeting of the Community Traffic Safety 
Team (CTST). 

Throughout the quarter, MPO staff also undertook a number of activities pertaining to the 
MPO Bike/Ped plan update. Those activities included reviewing a draft bicycle and 
pedestrian level of service analysis and reviewing a draft deficiencies analysis. 

Finally, MPO staff continued its Bicycle/Pedestrian safety training program by conducting 
bicycle/pedestrian safety roadeos at Sebastian and Beachland Elementary Schools. At those 
events, staff instructed elementary school students in basic bike/ped safety techniques, 
reviewed state laws governing safety, and conducted skills training using equipment from 
FDOT. 

• Task 4.4 - FDOT Project Coordination 

During the quarter, MPO and County engineering staff met with FDOT staff and consultants 
regarding resurfacing and/or widening projects on US 1, SR 60, and I-95. Tasks performed 
during the quarter included assisting with public involvement and notification issues, 
attending public meetings, and/or coordinating with various partner agencies. 
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Also during the quarter, MPO staff continued to coordinate with State and County officials to 
discuss the upcoming Interchange Justification Report (IJR) for a proposed interchange at 
Oslo Road. 

During the quarter, MPO, County, and FDOT staff coordinated on a number ofpost-2010 
Census planning activities. One such activity was development of an updated Sebastian
Vera Beach Federal Highway Urban Boundary Map. To develop the updated map, MPO 
staff and FDOT reviewed the previous urban boundary, identified areas of recent 
development, and proposed logical extensions of the boundary to eliminate gaps. When 
complete, the updated Urban Boundary Map was presented to the MPO and its advisory 
committees and was approved by those committees. 

Following the completion of the Urban Boundary map, FDOT and its consultants, in 
conjunction with the MPO and Indian River County staff developed a revised Federal 
Highway Functional Classification Map. The Map, which is used to determine eligibility for 
federal highway funding, right-of-way needs, and level of service determinations, was then 
presented to the MPO, TAC, and CAC for approval. 

• Task 4.5 - Intergovernmental Coordination 

Throughout the quarter, MPO staff coordinated with local governments with respect to its 
plans and programs. In so doing, MPO staff distributed information, provided local 
governments with technical assistance, and requested input from local governments into the 
transportation planning process. MPO staff also attended meetings, including a Community 
Traffic Safety Team (CTST) meeting, and coordinated with sponsoring agencies for those 
grant programs. 

Also during the quarter, MPO staff sent agenda materials, newsletters, and invitations to the 
St. Lucie, Martin, and Space Coast T/MPOs. In addition, MPO staff continued to review 
technical information and provide comments on proposed development projects in other 
jurisdictions that impact Indian River County. 

Finally, MPO staff conducted Transit Development Plan (TDP) public workshops in the 
cities of Sebastian and Fellsmere in order to facilitate participation by citizens of those 
communities. 

• Task 4.6 -Greenways Planning 

Throughout the quarter, MPO staff coordinated with the Office of Greenways and Trails 
(OGT) regarding the MPO's approved Recreational Trails Program projects (Trans-Florida 
Rail Corridor, Sebastian Crossings to North County Park and Lagoon Greenway project). 
Specific activities included finalizing construction invoices; supplying environmental 
information; and developing a project status report. 

During the quarter, MPO staff assisted County Staff and the Indian River Land Trust in 
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developing the Indian River Lagoon Greenway. That project, which will provide a safe 
pedestrian alternative to Indian River Boulevard, will utilize Recreational Trails Program 

... (RTP) funding to improve existing trail sections and develop new trail connections. 

Finally, MPO and County staff investigated future improvements to the Oslo Road 
Conservation Area (ORCA) section of the Lagoon Greenway. Among other activities staff 
developed GIS maps of the area and surveyed the area for potential future improvements. 

• Task 4. 7- Corridor Studies 

During the quarter, MPO staff completed the SR 60 Traffic Calming and Lane Reduction 
study. In so doing, the MPO's consultants, Kimley-Horn and Associates, presented the 
results ofthat study to the MPO and its advisory committees. For the draft and final studies, 
MPO staff reviewed consultant typical sections; background data; level of service analysis; 
model runs; and other work products. When the project was complete, the consultants 
presented the results of the study to the MPO and its advisory committees and also to the 
Vero Beach City Council and the Vero Beach Planning and Zoning Commission. 

• Task 4.8 - Regional Long Range Transportation Plan 

During the quarter, MPO staff worked with staff from the St. Lucie, Martin, and Space Coast 
T/MPOs to coordinate various Long Range Planning efforts. As an example, MPO staff 
coordinated with staff and consultants from the St. Lucie and Martin T /MPOs to discuss 
alternatives for updating the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Model. 

TASK END PRODUCTS PRODUCED THIS QUARTER 

End Products completed on or ahead of schedule (as indicated in the 2012/13 UPWP) during the 
quarter included: 

• Completion ofthe SR 60 Traffic Calming Study (Task 4.7, completed on schedule) 
• Completion of the 2013 MPO Apportionment Plan (Task 1.1, completed on schedule) 

UNCOMPLETED TASK END PRODUCTS 

There were no uncompleted tasks during the quarter. 

CONCLUSION 

From January 1, 2013 to March 31,2013, several UPWP work tasks progressed. MPO staff expects 
the level of activity on programmed work activities to increase during the fourth quarter of FY 
2012/13. 
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